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Further to a company announcement dated 22 April, 2020 it is hereby announced that the
Board of Directors of Harvest Technology plc (the “Company”) has approved the audited
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. A copy
of the said audited financial statements is attached to the present company announcement
and can also be viewed on the company’s web portal: https://harvest.tech/financial-

statements/.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors announces that it has resolved to distribute a net
dividend of €410,051 equivalent to €0.018 per share having a nominal value of €0.50 per
share (the “Dividend”). In view of the fact that, owing to the COVID-19 pandemic and the
application of related social distancing measures and other directives by the Public Health
Authorities, it is not as yet possible to establish, with any degree of certainty, the date of the
Company’s next Annual General Meeting, the Board of Directors of the Company has
elected to proceed with the payment of said Dividend in advance of an eventual Annual
General Meeting. Accordingly, all shareholders included in the shareholders’ register of the
Company as at 30 April, 2020 shall be entitled to receive their respective share of the
Dividend. Payment of the Dividend shall be effected on or around 15 May, 2020.
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The payment of the Dividend and the payment, in November 2019, of a net interim dividend
of €950,000 equivalent to €0.0417 per share having a nominal value of €0.50 per share, will
be submitted for confirmation by the shareholders of the Company entitled to attend and
vote at the next Annual General Meeting, when circumstances are such as to allow this to
take place.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Harvest Group”) are constantly monitoring
developments arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, taking all measures considered
necessary to mitigate the challenges, and equally, pursue the potential opportunities,
arising therefrom.

The Board of Directors also notes with satisfaction that the unaudited consolidated Net
Profit Before Tax of the Harvest Group in Q1, 2020 was €835,000, an improvement of 25%
on the budget projection for Q1 (€668,000) which constituted the first quarter of the annual
projected consolidated Net Profit Before Tax of €3,124,000 for 2020 as detailed in the
Prospectus published by the Company on 18 November 2019.

Whilst the Harvest Group continues to seek alignment of its results with previously set
budgetary targets for 2020, the Board of Directors remains conscious of the fact that, in the
prevailing extraordinary circumstances, such targets may need to be revised depending on
how the situation unfolds in the near future. The Board of Directors will endeavour to keep
the market informed of developments relevant to the Harvest Group and the performance
of its various business lines.

UNQUOTE

Dr Malcolm Falzon
Company Secretary
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Chairman’s message

Chairman’s message

Flarvest Technology p.l.c. closed 2019 with even better resulrs than projected — all the subsidiaries exceeded
their aggressive budgerary targets.

Today, 1 am delighted that the changes in — and thus the strengthening of — the governance structure of the
Group went smoothly in the run-up to listing. T am pleased to report that the Board and its various sub-
committees are functioning well, providing the right level of scrutiny iato the business activities of the
Group which have been entrusted 1o a strong team of senior managers under the able leadership of the Chief
ixccutive Officer.

1n 2019, we have seen the subsidiaries consolidate their position and lay the groundwork for further
diversification and internationalisation,

APCO Svstems in tandem with its alter ego Ipsyon has continued to diversify irs client base and has
extended its reach into the growing payments industry as a gateway of choice. PTL, partering with IBM
against stiff competition, has managed (o secure a very significant five-year contract in Mauritus to instal]
and maintain a boarder security system. APCO Limited has seen a very encouraging response to its efforts to
expand the automation segment of its business, particulatly in retail automation.

These subsidiarics closed 2019 with a strong pipeline, which augurs well for Q1, 2020,

Although all companies within the Group have rationalised costs and streamlined their operations to
improve the consolidated operational profit significantly, we have continued to invest in employee training
and certification, not only to ensure that we retain the necessary skills to bid for and take on technically
complex challenges, but also to retain and augment our human eapital.

In this world of uncertainty, perhaps agility and versatility arc the best atiributes to address uncharted waters.
As a technology group, we believe that the market for digitalisation, for automated payment setvices, for
integrated solutions based on systems integration, and for automation is poised to continue to grow. Our
challenge is to identify niches where demand is bound to grow, to do so ahead of time, and with the right
skills and capacity in hand that allows us to respond to our customers’ needs, and to deliver.

At the end of the dav, we are committed to deliver quality to our customers, to empower our employees to
ensure business continuity and to take the business to new heights, and to steadily augment shareholder

value.

In the trying times being expetienced globally, we look to the future with fortitude and determination,
r

£

Professor Juanito Camilleri
Chairman

24 April 2020




Chief Executive Officer’s review

ltis a great pleasure to communicate our story through this Annual Report.

December 2019 was a halimark for Harvest Technology p.lc. with our official listing on the Malta Stock
Exchange. This was a very proud milestone for all of us. With our diverse portfolio of technology-based
services and unmatched wotkforce capability and apitude, we are well positioned to deliver on our
objectives and performance.

Our DNA - Passion for Digital Transformation

‘Technology is one of the fastest paced industries in a very active landscape. Fortune’s 2019 ranking of the
world’s top three performers (fastest growing) in revenues, profits and stock returns provides a snapshot of
the trends driving the global economy. It shows that for the second vear in a row, the technology sector
places the most companies on the list: six of the top 10 entries are technology companies.

Harvest Technology is 2 group of technology-based activities brought together by design to create a critical
mass of management expertise, technological prowess and operational excellence. Leveraging the strong
synergies that came to be, we are now consistently looking at the horizon to define where the opportunities
lie and what our next steps will be. Encoded in our DNA is passion for digital transformation applied to
business opportunities. In everyching we do, we constantly have three key objectives: sharcholder value,
business growth and our employees. These three drivers form the nexus of our valuc proposition.

Our existing portfolio consists of business units delivering systems engineeting, security solutions, e-
commerce platforms, electronic pavments solutions, automation products, networking and system
maintenance, product development and I'T outsourcing - more specifically APCO Systems Limited, PTL.
Limited, Tpsyon Limited and APCO Limited.

APCO Systems Limited delivers a secure and reliable payment platform that enables digital businesses to
transact online. APCOPAY is recognised in the marker as one of the most flexible and client responsive
products around. As a leading system integrator, PTL Limited delivets a broad range of global solutions
across the IT spectrum. It is the partner of choice for numerous leading organisations and has 2 proven track
record of successful deployments across myriad industries. Focused on the delivery of diverse autornation
and security solutions, APCO Limited builds on its strong reputation fot a dynamic approach to supporting
companies innovate.

Individually and more importantly as a whole, we deliver impactful and intuitive solutions to derive scamless
outcomes and customer satisfaction in myriad sectors including banking, aviation, pharmaceuticals, state
agencies, gaming, retail, and many more.

We have succeeded to build an outstanding team that is able to nurtare the strong and lasting relationships
with existing and new partners, During 2019, the company continuce to increase its focus on services,
without cannibalising its large product portfolio base. We keep eapitalising on our past strengths in the
payment industry, systems integration and business transformation as well as eutomation and security. Going
forward we are aggressively pursuing new arcnas involving virtual currencics, wallets, blockchain, AT and
machine learning as well as robotic process automation, 10T and many other arcas which bring added valuc
to our products and services.

Internationalization

While we continue to expand our local presence in terms of business opportunities, during 2019 and going
forward we are very aggressively increasing our focus on internationalization. We have already won a majot
project and are exploring several opportunities in Europe, North and South Africa and bevond.
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With our expertise, continuously being widened through extensive training programimes for our employees,
we are capitalizing on the strong partnership we have with the biggest players in the industry including but
not limited to IBM, Microsoft, Diebold and NCR, among others.

Employees

We vazlue our employees as our most valuable assets. We believe in continued career progression and actvely
support our people by providing them with consistent training, learning opportunities and a structared
petformance and reward system. The organisational cuiture being fostered at Harvest Technology is one
whete employees are empowered to collaborate direcily towards achieving common set goals. This culture is
underpinaed by the value of a healthy work life balance, also actively supporting remote work and flexible
working arrangements.

The human resource base 1s rich in skills, experience and diversity, three determining factors driving the
recruitment and selection process when hiring people, Apart from the recruitment stage, we understand the
mmportance of talent retention and strive towards retaining our employees through constant motivaton and
communication. Furthermore, through the Harvest Technology Academy we have a great opportunity in
terms of the recruitment pipeline. We want to become the top employer in the industry, rating and growing
talent.

Technology

2019 was a year of transformation from a technology perspective, with several projects and initiatives taking
place in order to better shape the maximisation of technology, taking in consideration the expertise found
within the group. We placed significant effort to make sure that we have a fully mobile workforce with the
ability to work from anywhere and using interaction terminals/devices of choice. This both from 2
productivity as well as a security perspective,

As part of several obligations related to ISO standards as well as our continued internal effort to improve
our secutity in general, considerable investment and energy was directed towards ensuring that our posture is
tobust. Periodically, secutity training is carried out involving all company employees, along with periodical
security simulations, to ensure our security posture is always well positioned to handle cyber-attacks, both
internal and external,

We have enabled the first fuel station which is credit card-ready, a first for the Malta market. We have also
integrated more than 70 new payment options, acquiting partaers, platforms and e-commerce plugins in our
world class platform. We have also further improved its redundancy and scalability, introduced new data
analytics tools and greatly enhanced the user experience. We have more than 2,000 clients in 25 countries,
spread over more than 10 industries including airlines, health, retail, Government, gaming and more. We
have worked on very interesting and innovative projects in the ERP, Retail and e-Commerce space,
automation, device management, and cross-cloud integration among many others.

We also continued with the evaluation, and implementation where appropriate, of our current and future
offerings where disruptive technologies such as Al machine learning, robotic process automation and
Blockchain can be exploited to offer better services and products and bring additional value to our customer

Chief Executive Officer

24 April 2020
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of Harvest Technology p.l.c.
and the consolidated financial statements of the Group of which it is the parent, for the year ended 31
December 2019,

Principal activities
The principal activity of the parent company 1s that of acting as a holding company.

The Group is mainly involved in the sale, maintenance and servicing of information technology solutions,
security systems, and to provide electronic payments solutions.

Performance review

During the year under review, the Group registered an operating profit of €3,224,957 (2018: € 967,412) on
revenue of € 16,049,372 (2018: € 15,568,699). After accounting for net finance costs and taxation, the Group
registered a profit for the year of € 2,088,772 (2018: € 580,676).

The Group’s net assets at the end of 2019 amounted to €10,353,416 (2018: € 9,214,912).

"The Company catned management fees and investment income of € 352,703 and € 2,579,591, respectively
(2018: € 443,492 and € 2,218,290, respectively). After accounting for finance income, finance costs and
administrative expenditote, the Company registered a profit after tax of € 1,095,432 (2018: € 849,856). The
net assets of the Company at the end of 2019 amounted to € 11,585,011 (2018: € 11,439,579).

The Group measures the achievement of its objectives using the following other key performance indicators.
Financial

The Group’s cuttent ratio (“current assets divided by current liabilities”) currently stands at 1.25:1 (2018:
1.16:1).

The Group measures its performance based on EBITDA. EBITDA is defined as the Group profit before
depreciation, amortisation, net finance expense and taxation. During the year under review, EBITDA
amounted to € 3,856,340 (2018: € 1,355,370).

The Group aims to deliver 2 return on average capital employed above the level of its cost of funding. The
tretutn on average capital employed represents the profit on ordinary activities before finance costs and
exceptional items, divided by the average of opening and closing tangible net worth. The Company ensures
that this capital is used as effectively as possible. The return on average capital employed improved from
10% to 31% during the year under review due to an improvement in profitability.

The results of the Harvest Technology plc. Group exceeded the projected financial results as illustrated in
the Prospectus dated 18 November 2019.

Non-financial

The directors note that the volumes in e-commerce business increased by 82% in 2019 over 2018. The
Hatvest Technology p.Lc. Group will continue to provide steadily positive results which the directors are
committed to strengthen and continue to improve,




Harvest Technology p.l.c. 6
Report and consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Principal risks and uncertainties

The successtul management of risk is essential to enable the Group to achieve its objectives. The ultimate
responsibility for risk management rests with the company’s directors, who evaluate the Group’s sisk appetite
and formulate policies for identifying and managing such risks. The principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are included below:

Marker and competition

The Group operates in a highly competitive environment and faces competition from various other entities.
Technological developments alse have the ability to create new forms of quickly evolving competition. An
effective, coherent and consistent strategy to respond to competitors and changing markets enables the
Group to sustain its market share and its profitability, The Group continues to focus on service quality and
performance in managing this risk.

Talent and skills

Failute to engage and develop the Group’s existing employees or to attract and retain talented employees
could hamper the Group’s ability to deliver in the future. Regular reviews are undertaken of the Group’s
resource requitements.

Economic and market environment

A significant economic decline in any of the markets that the Group operates in could impact the Group’s
ability to continuve to attract and retain customers. Demand for the Group’s products and services can be
adversely affected by weakness in the wider economy which are beyond the Group’s control. This risk is
evaluated as part of the Group’s annual strategy process covering the key areas of investment and
development and updated regularly throughout the year. The Group continues to make investment in
innovation, The Group regularly reviews its pricing structures to ensure that its products and services are
approprately placed within the markets in which it operates.

Brand and veputation risk

Damage to the Group’s reputation could ultisnately impede the Group’s ability to execute its corporate
strategy. To mitigate this risk, the Group strives continually to build its reputation through 2 commitment to
sustainability, ranspareacy, effective communication and best practices. The Group works to develop and
maintain its brand value.

Technology and business interruption

The Group telies on information technology in all aspects of its business. In addition, the services that the
Group offers to its customers are reliant on complex technical infrastructure, A failure in the operation of the
Group’s key systems or infrastructure could cause a failure of service to its customers, thus negatively
impacting its brand, and increased costs. The Grouwp invests in technology infrastructure to enable it 1o
continue to support the growth of its business and has a robust selection and monitoring process of third-
party providers. The Group also organises regular business continuity exercises to ensure ongoing readiness
of key systems and sites.

Customer service

The Group’s revenues are at tisk if it does not continue to provide the level of sexvice expected by its
customers. The Group’s commitment to customers is embedded in its values. The relevant employees
undettake appropriate training programmes to ensure that they are aware of, and abide by, the levels of
service that are required by the Group’s customers.

Financial instraments visks

Note 42 to the financial statements provides details in connection with the Company’s financial risk
management objectives and policies and the financial risks to which it is exposed
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Non-financial statement matters
Environmental matters

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility and feels that it is its duty to operate as part of the
local community in order to keep the environment in which it operates tidy. Subsidiaries within the Group
ate enrolled in local programmes for waste collection, separation and recycling of waste.

Employee matters

The Group provides opportunities to individuals with divesse backgrounds and experiences, to work in its
envitonment and provide the necessary training programs to its staff members to ensure high levels of
engagement which is essential to its continuing business success, whilst making sure that it provides career
progression mechanisms and rewarding achievements. All this is provided in an environment which fosters
diversity and equal opportunities for everyone, respecting the unique attributes and perspectives of every
employee.

The Group provides equal treatment and equal employment opportunity without regard to race, colour,
religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, sexual otientation, gender identity or any other basis protected by
law. In addition, it is committed to providing a safe and heaithful working environment for its employees.
For everyone’s safety, employees must imimediately report accidents and unsafe practices or conditions to
their immediate supervisors.

Social matters

The Group engages with its social partners and the community in general to give back through community
involvement and the protection of the environment through the creation and realisation of advanced
technology systems. The Group’s history has shown a proven contribution towards society by enhancing the
quality of life of its customers and the general public alike.

Obligations

The Group conducts its activities by taking positive actions respect human rights, as defined in the code of
business conduct, which applies to all employees of the Group. All Group employees are trained annually on
the standard of business conduct.

Nevertheless, the Group makes sure that it respects all its obligations regarding fraud, bribery and
cottuption. The Group prohibits all forms of bribery and corruption in accordance with the Group Code of
Conduct and Whistle-blower Policy to ensute that all employees are discouraged from any corrupt practices
or bribery as well as are incentivized to report any such activities in a direct line with the responsible Group
supetrvisor, without fearing reprisals.

Accordingly, all employees, representatives and business partners must fully comply with anti-bribery
legistation.

Meanwhile, the Group is committed to complying with the applicable laws in all countries where it does
business. It adopts an anti-corruption policy which sets forth its commitment to ensuzing that it carries out
business in an ethical manner.
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Business model

Harvest Technology p.l.c.’s business line in Malra is 2 muld-brand information technology solutions provider
to businesscs and the public sector. In addition, Harvest Technology pl.e. Group is a payments solutions
provider offering c-commerce processing services for retailers and Internet-based merchants together with
the provision of a wide range of automation and security solutions catering to the banking, retail, fuel and
other scctors.

Through the wide range of services and experience in technology, the Group is positdoned to continuc to
develop and offer a broad range of state-of-the-art solutions, and assure an excellent quality of service to its
customers.

Significant judgements and estimates

Note 4 to the financial statements provides details in connection with the inherent uncertainties that
surround the preparation of the financial statements which require significant estimates and judgements.

Results and dividends

The results for the year ended 31 December 2019 are shown in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 28. The Group’s profit for the vear after taxation was € 2,088,772 (2018:
€ 580,676), whilst the Company’s profit for the year after taxation was € 1,005,432 (2018: € 849,850).

During the vear the Company paid a net interim dividend of € 950,000 - € 0.0417 per share, (2018 -

€ 750,000 - € 0.0329 per share). On 24 April 2020 the ditectors proposed a further net dividend of € 410,051,
cquivalent to € 0.018 per share. This, together with the interim dividend paid during the vear, will be put
forward for approval at the Company's next Annual General Mecting,

The dividend per share has been calculated after taking into consideration the share split undertaken by the
Company during the vear.

Likely future business developments

The directors consider that the year-end financial positon was satisfactory. However future performance
might be negatively effected due to COVID-19 pandemic as disclosed in note 44 to the financial stacements
and below.

Post balance sheet events
Listing of the company’s shares on the Malta Stock Exchange

A total of 22,780,636 ordinary shares in Flarvest Technology p.l.c., representing the total issued share capital,
were admitted to the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange on 6 January 2020 and trading started from
7 January 2020.

Upon listing of the total issued share capital of Harvest Technology p.l.c. on the Official List of the Malta
Stock Exchange, the shareholding of Flarvest Technology p.le. was divided in the following manner:

- 1923 Investments p.l.c. 14,340,506 ordinary shares 63% of the total issued share capital
- Prof Juanito Camilleri 1,593,397 ordinary shares 7% of the total issued share capital
- New sharcholders 6,846,733 ordinary shates 30% of the total issued share capital

Effects of the Covid-19 pandemic

Following the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the directors are closely monitaring all the developments
that are currently taking place and which might impact the results of the Company in the futore in order to
be able to take any immediate action to safeguard the interest of the Group.




To-date the Group is taking all necessary measures such as an off-site contingency plan to maintain
operations as normal as possible. The direcrors are of the view that it is still too early to comment on the
consequences of the events that are still taking place and therefore cannot reliably estimate any financial or
other affect that such events could have on the Group.

Such events may have an adverse effect on the Group’s future profitability, liquidity and financial position. A
more detailed explanation of any possible effects is disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements.

Directors
The foliowing have served as directors of the Company during the period under review:

Prof Juanito Camilleri - Chairman (appointed on 1 April 2015)
Mz Richard Abdilla Casdllo (appointed on 3 September 2019)*
My Conrad Aquilina (appointed on 3 Scptember 2019)

Mrs Jacqueline Camilleri (appointed on 3 September 2019)

Mr Stephen Paris {appointed on 14 October 2019)

Mr Steve Tarr (resigned on 4 September 2019)

Dr Godwin Caruana (resigned on 4 September 2019)

*Mr., Richard Abdilia Casdllo, originally appointed on 23 December, 2013, relinquished his position on 17
Octaber 2016, was re-appointed on 7 December 2017, and again briefly relinquished his position on 9 May
2019, unzil he was subsequently re-appointed on the date indicated above.

The dircctors of the Company are re-appointed in the manner specified in the corpotate governance statement
on page 13,

Remuneration statement

In terms of Rule 8A.4 of the Code, the Company is to include a remuneration statement in its annual report
which shall include details of the remuneration policy of the Company and the financial packages of
Directors and the Chief Tixecutive Officer (“CILO”).

Remuneration policy - Directors

Save as specified in the next paragraph, the remuncration payable to Directors (all of whom are non-
executive) is fixed and does not include any variable element based on performance indicators or the sight to
purchase shares in the Company by virtue of share options, or any other deferred compensation, pension
benefits or non-cash benefits.

By way of exception to the Company’s general remuneration policy (to date) on non-cash benefits, the non-
exccutive Chairman is entitled to a fixed based salary together with fringe benefits, comprising of a medical
and life insurance (subject, however, to a capping on the premium that may be paid at the Compant’s
expense for such purpose), as well as mobile and internet connectivity data, at the expense of the Company.
The fixed basc salary of the non-exceutive Chairman covers his position as non-executive Chairman of each
of the operating subsidiarics of the Company. Furthermore, although the Company’s remuneration policy
due for approval by the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is not to award
shate-based remuneration, priot to the admission to listing of the Company’s entire issued share capital to
the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange, the non-executive Chairman was party to a share option
agreement dated 24th October 2016, in terms of which he was entitled to: receive 14,705 ordinary shares in
the Company having 2 nominal value of €£1.00 (pre-share split), on an annual basis for as long as he occupied
the post of non-exccutive director of the Company; and exercise an option to acquire up to 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at any given time (the ‘sharc option entitlement’). On 14th QOctober
20119, the non-executive Chairman cxercised his entiddement to the share option created in terms of said
agreement. As a result of the exercise of the said share option entitlement, on 14th October 2019 the
majority shareholder of the Company, 1923 Investments p.le. (C 63261), transferred 1,094,916 ordinary
shares of a nominal value of € 1.00 (pre-share split} in the Company to the non-Fxecutive Chairman, split as
to 14,705 ordinary shates of a nominal value of € 1.00 (pre-share split) by way of remuneration for services




rendered as Director during the period under review, and 1,080,211 ordinary shares of a nominal value of
€1.00 (pre share split) transferred by way of excrcise of the said share option entitlement.

In view of the management structure of the Group, and the fact that the main assets of the Company are its
investments in its operating subsidiarics (PTL Limited, APCO Limited, APCO Systems Limited and Ipsvon
Limited), the Board considers a fixed remuneration to Directors as an appropriate and suitable remuneration
package for the Board in the performance of their dutics, Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee is
satisfied thar the base remuneraton for the vear under review is in line with the core principles of the
remuneration policy applicable during the year under review, including giving due regard to market
conditions and remuneration rates offered by comparable organisations for comparable roles.

Aggregate emoluments of Directors
The aggregate cmoluments of all Directors in anv onc financial vear, and any increascs thereto, are approved

by the sharcholders in general meeting in accordance with Article 21.1 of the Articles of Association.

The ageregate amount of remuneration paid to all Directors of the Company for the financial year under review
was €111,070, The Board is currently composed of five (5) non-executive directors {including the non-
executive Chairman). The directors were paid the following amounts duting the vear under review:

Prof. Juanito Camilleri: € 100,121,

Mrs Jacqueline Camilleri*: € 6,539,

M. Stephen Paris**: € 4410

Mr. Richard Abdilla Castilio: € nil;

Mr Conrad Aquilina: € nil;

Mr Steve Tarr™*; € nil;

Dr Godwin Caruana***: € nil (in so far as his positon as director was concerned — see below with

respect to remuneration as CEQ).

* appointed 3 Scptember 2019
# appointed 14 October 2019
#k pesipned as director on 4 September 2019

The remuncration payable to the non-cxecutive Chairman covers both his role as dircetor and non-cxccutive
chairman of Company, as well as his role as director and non-executve chairman of each of the subsidiaries
forming part of the Group. Although a number of the non-executive Directors are members of the various
standing committees of the Company, such Directors did not receive any additional remuneration for
occupying such roles during the year under review. In cstablishing its remuncration policy, the Board of
Directors will considet, inter alia, how the fixed base salary payable to Directors should be supplemented in
the case that they form part of such committees, in recognition of the functions, roles and responsibilities of
the Directors concerned when acting in such additional capacities.

Summary of director service contracts

As at the date hereof, each of the Directors, other than Richard Abdilla Castillo and Conrad Aquilina, are
party to a ditector services contract with the Company, pursuant to which the respective role,
responsibilities, duties and the applicable remuneration of each Director is set out.

Save in the case of the non-executive Chairman, whaose current contract of service is for an indefinite
dutation, the term of each agreement commences from the date of entry into the said contract and continues
in force thereafter until the next annual general meeting of the Company at which the Directors shall be
cligible for re-election, ot until such time as the Director resigns or until such time as he is removed from
office.

None of the setvice contracts contain provistons for termination payments and other payments linked to
carly terminadon.
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Remuneration policy - CEO

The remuneration payable to the CEQ is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors to ensure that such
femuneration is commensurate with the roles, duties and responsibilities of the CEO, as well as the
individual skills, knowledge, expertise, experience and performance thereof.

In establishing the remuneration payable to the CEQ, the Board of Directors is guided by the
recommendations of the RemNom Committee, including any recommendations intended to ensure that
remuneration payable is in line with market standards and is well suited to retain and motvate the CEO of
the Company to contribute to the long-term success and development of the Group.

The CEO is entitled to a fixed based salary together with 2 variable discretionary performance bonus, based
on a pre-defined percentage of the audited consolidated net profir before taxation of the Company. Such
bonus scheme is driven by the crucial role of the CEO in the oversight of the day-to-day business, and the
growth of, the Company and its underlying business clusters. The CHO is also entitled to a fully expensed
mobile phone and laptop, as well as part pavment of premia for overseas medical insurance and life
insurance.

Emoluments paid and accrued to the CEO for the period 16 September 2019 (date of appointment as CEQ)
to 31 December 2019, amounted to € 45,848, split as 1o € 36,948 by way of fixed remuneration and € 8,900
by way of variable remuneration. In addition, prior to Dt Caruana’s appointment as CEO of the Company,
he served as the Chief Technology Officer of 1923 Investments p.le. (C 63261).

The CEQO’s contract of scrvice is of an indefinizc duration, and is subject to the termination notice periods
prescribed by law.,

Remuneration policy in accordance with the requirements of Chapfer 12 of the Listing Rules

The proposed remuncration policy for the vear ended 31 December 2020 shall be put to @ binding vote of
the shareholders in the company’s next Annual General Meeting. This remuneration policy shall be reviewed
regularly, and any material amendments thereto shall be submitted to & vote by the annual general meeting of
the company before adoption, and in any case at least every four (4) vears. Such policy is being drawn up
having due regard to market conditions, remuneration rates offered br comparable organisations for
comparable roles, the responsibility vested in the role performed by the Directors, amongst other
considerations.

In addition, if the remuneration policy shall be approved by the shareholders as aforesaid, the Company
intends, as from the financial year ended 31 December 2020, to present an annual remuacration report in the
form as required under Appendix 12.1 of the Listing Rules, which remuneration report shall be put forward
to an advisory vote of the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting held after 31 December 2020, in
accordance with the requitements of Listing Rule 12.26L..

Going concern

The directors are satisfied that, at the time of approving the financial statements, it is appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing rthe financial statements,

Disclosure of information to the auditor
At the date of making this report the ditectors confirm the following:

- As far as each director is aware, there is no relevant information needed by the independent auditor in
connection with preparing the audit report of which the independent auditor is unaware, and

- Each director has taken all steps thar they ought to have raken as a director in order to make themscelves
awarc of any relevant information nceded by the independent auditor in connection with preparing the
report and to establish that the independent auditor is aware of that information.




Statement of directors’ responsibilities

"The Companies Act, Cap 386 requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period
which give a truc and fair view of their state of affairs of the group and the company as at the cnd of the
reporting period and of the profit or loss of their operations for that period. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors ate required to:

- adopt the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in
business;

- scleet suitable accounting policics and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- account tor income and charges relating to the accounting period on the accruals basis; and

- value scparately the components of asset and liability items.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial positon of the company, and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
have been propetly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, Cap 386. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstazement, whether due to fraud or error. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group, and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Auditor

Grant Thornton have intimated their willingness to condnue in office.

A resolution to reappoint Grant Thornton as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting,

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf on 24 April 2020 by:

Prof Juanito Camilleri “Abdra Castillo

Chairman

Registered address:
Nincteen Twenty-Three
Valletta Road

Marsa MRS 3000

Malta

24 Aptil 2020
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Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance

A. Introduction

Pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Listing Authority, Harvest Technology p..c. {the “Company™)
should endeavour to adopt the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance contained in Appendix
5.1 to Chapter 5 of the Listing Rules {the *“Code).

‘The Company was admitted to Hsting on the Official List of the Malta Stock Exchange on the 6th of January
2020. Prior to this date, the Company was not regulated by the Listing Rules and accordingly was not
required to comply with the Code. Nevertheless, as at the date of this Report, the Board of Directors (the
“Board” or the “Directors™), considers the Company to be generally compliant with the Code. In those
instances where the Company’s otganisation and practices deviate from the Code, the Board is of the view
that thete ate cogent justifications for such divergences, taking into account the size, complexity and nature
of operations of the Company, as explained in further detail in section B of this Corporate Governance
Statement.

‘The Company acknowledges that the Code does not dictate or prescribe mandatory rules but recommends
principles of good practice. However, the Directors strongly believe that such practices are generally in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders and that compliance with the Code is not only expected
by investors but also evidences the Directors’ and the Company’s commitment to a high standard of good
governance.

The Company’s governance principally lies with its Board, which is responsible for the overall determination
of the Company’s policics and business strategies. The Company has adopted a corporate decision-making
and supervisory structure that is tailored to suit its requirements and designed to ensure the existence of
adequate controls and procedures within the Company, whilst retaining an element of flexibility essential to
allow the Company to react prompiy and cfficiently to circumstances arising in respect of its business, taking
into account its size and the economic conditions in which it operates. The Directors are of the view that it
has employed structures, which are most suitable and complementary for the size, nature and operations of
the Company. Accordingly, in gencral the Directors believe that the Company has adopted appropriate
structures to achieve an adequatce level of good corporate governance, together with an adequate system of
control in line with the Company’s requirements.

"T'his Corporate Governance Statement (the “Statement™) sets out the organisational structures, controls
practices and processes in place within the Company and explains how these effectively achieve the goals set
out in the Code. For this purpose, the Statement will make reference to the pertinent provisions and
principles of the Code and set out the manner in which the Directors believe these have been adhered to.
Where the Company has not complied with any of the principles of the Code, this Statement provides an
explanation for such non-compliance. Reference in this Statement to compliance with the principles of the
Code means compliance with the Code’s main principles and provisions.

The Board has carried out a review of the Company’s compliance with the Code during the petiod under
review, and is hereby reporting on the extent of its adoption of the provisions and principles of the Code for
the financial year being reported, as required in terms of Listing Rule 5,97,

‘T'he Code is accessible via the website of the Listng Authority on https://www.mfsa.mt/wpcontent/
uploads /2019/07/20190530 Fulll isungRules Amendments.pdf at Appendix 5.1 thereof.




B. Compliance

Principle 1: The Board

"The Directors believe that for the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the
requirements of this principle and the relative Code provisions.

The Board is composed of members who are fit and proper to direct and management the business of the
Company with honesty, competence and integrity. All the members of the Board are fully aware of, and
conversant with, the statutory and regulatory requirements connected to the business of the Company and its
status as a listed company and the Board is cognisant of its accountability for its own performance and that
of its delegates.

The Board is primatily responsible for determining the Company’s strategic direction and organisational
tequirements, whilst ensuring that the Company has the appropriate mix of financial, human and operational
resources to meet its objectives and improve its performance. Throughout the period under review, the
Board provided the necessary leadership in the overall direction of the Company and has adopted prudent
and effective systems whereby it obrains timely information from the Chief Hixecutive Qfficer (the “CEQ”)
and the Chief Tinancial Officer {the “CFO”).

The CEO acts as a channel of communication between the Board, the senior management team and the
managing directors of the Company’s operating subsidiarics, ensuring an effective contribution to the
decision-making process, whilst at the same time exercising prudent and effective controls. The CFO leads
the finance function of the Company and plays a central role in the preparation of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, the appraisal of investment opportunitics, as well as the monitoring the
operational performance of the Company’s business, cash flow and capital requirements. The CFO is also
generally responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with its statutory financial and fiseal reporting
obligations.

The Board delegates specific responsibilities to several committees, notably the Audit Commirtee, the
Remunerations and Nominations Committee (the “RemNom Committee™) , and the Governance and Risk
Committee, each of which operate under formal terms of reference approved by the Board. Further detail in
relation to the Committees and the responsibilities of the Board is found in paragraph ‘Principles 4 and 5 of
this Statement.

Principle 2: Chaitman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer arc occupicd by separate individuals. During the
period under review, Dr Godwin Caruana occupicd the post of Chief Fxecutive Officer and Prof Juanito
Camilleri occupied the post of Chairman. The Board considers that notwithstanding that the Chaisman is not
an independent Director as recommended by the Code, the means for addressing potential conflicts of
interest are suitably addressed in the Articles of Association of the Company and terms of reference of the
Audit Committee of the Company, Furthermore, the Board considers the present Chairman to be fit and
propet to occupy the role, having the relevant and necessary experience and expettise to fulfil the role.

The responsibilities and roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are cleatly established and
agreed to by the Board of Directors, with the Chairman generally responsible for leading the Board, whereas
the CLO is generally responsible for the day-fo-day management of the Company, thereby cnsuring effective
checks and balances on the exercise of the management and conduct of affairs of the Company. The
separation of roles is also entrenched in the Articles of Association of the Company, wherchy in terms of
Article 13.2 of the Articles of Association, where the CRO is appointed to form part of the senior
management team of the Company, the CEQO may not also simultaneously form part of the Board of
Directors.




The Chairman is responsible for:

» leading the Board and setting its agenda;

» ensuring that the Board is in reccipt of precisc, timely and objective information to cnable the
Board to take sound and commercially reasonable decisions and effectively monitor the
performance of the Company;

e cncourages and supports active engagement by all Directors for discussion of complex and
contentious issues and ensuring that all Directors are aftorded ample opportunity to contribute to
the issues on the agenda and present their views; and

» cnsuring cffective communication and relationship management with the Company’s shatcholders.

Principle 3: Composition of the Board

In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, the board of directors shall consist of a minimum of
five (5) directors and maximum of seven (7) directors, one of whom may include the Chief Executive
Orficer.

The Articles of Association of the Company distinguish between the process for the appointment of
executive directors and non-executive directors.

Appointment of exccutive directors

Non-executive directors of the Company are enfitled to appoint executive directors to the Board of
Directors of the Company from amongst the most senior executive positions of the Company. An executive
director appointed in such manner will have a term of office of three (3) years and wiil thercafter be eligible
for re-appointment, and may not be removed from office by the non-cxecutive directors: (i) unless his
office as a senior executive has also been terminated; or {ii) with just cause being shown to the satisfaction of
the Nominations Committee.

Appointment of non-executive directors

Non-execative directors of the Company shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting of the Company. The Artcles of Association of the Company provide for two mechanisms by
which noa-executive directors mav be nominated fot appointment by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting, as follows: {i} any member or number of members who in the aggregate hold not less than 10% of
the total number of equity sccuritics having voting rights in the Company shall be enditled to nominate a fit
and propet person fot appointment as a ditector of the Company; and (i) in addition to the aforementioned
nominations, the dircctors themselves or the Nominations Committee may make recommendations and
nominations for the appointment of directors at the next following annual general meeting. In either
case, no person will be entitled to take office as a director unless approved by the Nominations Commmittee,
which is empowered to reject any recommendation if in its considered opinjon, such appointment could be
detrimental to the Company’s intetests ot if such petson is not considered fit and propet to occupy that
posidon.

Removal of directors

Any Directot may be removed at any time by the ordinary resolution of the Shareholders of the Company in
accordance with the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the laws of Malta), or in accordance with any other
applicable law, or in the specific cases set out in the Articles of Association of the Company. Once appointed
to office in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, a
Director shall hold office for a minimum petiod of three (3) years and a maximum period of five (5)
years, unless he/she resigns ot is carlier removed or is due to retire by rotaton in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. A Director whose term of office expires will be eligible for re-
appointment.




The Board of Dircectors is currently chaired by Prof. Juanito Camilleri and comprises five (5) non-cxecutive
Directors. As at the date of this Statement, the directors of the Company are:

Director Caparity Date of appsinturens
Prof. Juanito Camillert Non-Fixecutive (Chairman) 1 March 2015

Mr. Richard Abdilla Castiflo Non-Exccutive 3 September 2019*
Mr. Conrad Aquilina Non-Executive 3 September 2019
Mr. Stephen Paris Independent Non-Executive 14 Ocrober 2019
Ms. Jacqueline Camilleri Independent Non-Executive 3 September 2019

*Mt. Richard Abdilla Castillo, originally appointed on 23 December, 2013, relinquished his position on 17
October 2016, was re-appointed on 7 December, 2017, and again bricfly relinquished his position
on 9 May 2019 until he was subsequently re-appointed on the date indicated above.

In addition, during the year under review the following individuals served as members of the Board of
Directots of the Company:

Director Capacity Date of resipnation
Mr. Steve Tarr Non-Executive Director Resigned on 4 September 2019
Dr. Godwin Caruana Ixecutive Director Resigned on 4 September 2019

For the purpose of Code Provision 3.2, two of the Directors are considered by the Board to be independent
within the meaning of the Listing Rules, such independent directors being Ms. Jacqueline Camilleri and Mr.
Stephen Paris.

The Board of Directors have formulated the view that notwithstanding that Mr. Richard Abdilla Castillo and
Mr. Conrad Aquilina are emploved by 1923 Investments p.l.c. {the majority and coatrolling sharcholder of
the Company), the Board of Directors affirms that there are cogent reasons to believe that the independence
of the directors is not compromised by the services rendered by the said ditectors under their respective
contracts of employment, and that the directors are mindful of maintaining professionalism and integrity in
carrying out their duties, responsibilitics and providing judgement as a non-executive director of the
Company. .

Furthermore, the Board considers Ms. Jacqueline Camilleri to be independent from the Company. In makiog
this determination, the Board of Directors considered the tfollowing principal determining factors: () with
reference to her position as a member of the Board of Directors of Hili Finance Company p.l.c. (C85692),
the Board noted that Ms. Camilleri sits as an independent non-exccutive directar and is, therefore, not
involved in the day-fo-day operations; and (i) nonc of the circumstances set out in Code Provision 3.2 that
would be indicative of a director’s non-independence, are satistied,

The non-executive directors contribute to the strategic development of the Company and the creation of
long-term growth of the Company and are responsible for:

*  constructively challenging and developing strategy;

*  monitoring reporting of performance;

*  scrutinising performance of management; and

* cosuring the integrity of fipancial information, financial controls and risk management systems.

Save as disclosed above, none of the non-exccutive Directors of the Company:

{a) are or have been employed in any capacity by the Company;

() receive significant additonal remuneration from the Company;

(c) have close family ties with any of the executive membets of the Board;

(d) have been within the last three years an engagement partner or a member of the audit team of the
present or past external auditor of the Company; and

(€) have a significant business relationship with the Company.
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In terms of Code Provision 3.4, cach non-executive Director has declared in wtiting to the Board that he/she
undertakes:

-+

to maintain in all circumstances his/her independence of analysis, decision and action;

not to seck or accept any unteasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising his/her
independence; and

to clearly express his/her opposition in the event that he/she finds that a decision of the Board may harm
the Company.

Principles 4 and 5: The Responsibilities of the Board and Board Meetings

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the overall direction, administration and management of the
Company and meets on a regular basis to discuss and take decisions on matters concerning the strategy,
operational performance and financial performance of the Company.

In fulfiiling its mandate, the Board assumes responsibility to:

a)
b)
9
d)
<)
f)
g)

establish approptiate cotporate governance standards;

review, evaluate and approve, on 2 regular basis, long-term plans for the Company;

review, evaluate and approve the Company’s budgets and forecasts;

review, evaluate and approve major resource allocations and capital investments;

review the financial and operating results of the Company;

ensure appropriate policies and procedures are in place to manage risks and internal control;
review, evaluate and approve the overall corporate organisation structure, the assignment of
management responsibilities and plans for senior management development including succession;
review, evaluate and apptove compensation to senior management;

review periodically the Company’s objectives and policies relating to social, health and safety and
environmental responsibilities; and

ensuring effective communication with shareholders, stakeholders and the marker.

[n fulfilling its responsibilities, the Board continuously assesses and monitors the Company’s present and
future operations, opportunities, threats, and risks in the external environment, and its current and future
strengths and weaknesses in its internal environment.

The Board delegates specific responsibilities to Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
RemNom Committee, and the Governance and Risk Commitcee.

‘I'he Board believes that it complies fully with the requirements of Principle 5 and the relative Code
Provistons, in that it has systems in place to ensure reasonable notice of meetings of the Board and ensuring
that the Directors receive discussion papers in advance of meetings so as to provide adequate time for
Directors to adequately and suitably prepare themsclves and enable them to make an informed decision
during meetings of the Board.

'T'he Directors ate assisted by the company secretary, who is consulted to ensure compliance with statutory
requirements and with continuing listing obligations. The company secretary keeps detailed minutes of all
meetings of the Board and of its committees, which minutes are subsequently circulated to the Board as
soon as practicable after the meeting.

‘The company secretary also maintains detailed records of all dealings by Directors and senior executives of
the Company and its subsidiaries in the Company’s shares, and assists the Board and senior management in
being duly informed of and conversant with their obligations emanating from the Market Abuse Regulation
(I:U Regulaton 5396/2014) and ensuring compliance therewith, to ensure the prevention and detection of
insider dealing, uniawful disclosure of inside information and, ot market abuse. In particular, cognisant of the
material consequences of non-compliance with MAR and the effects thercof on investor confidence and
market integrity, the Board has in place written policies and procedures relating to the keeping of insiders
lists, dealing in shates of the Company, and procedures for persons in possession of inside information.




In addition, the Directors may, in the course of their daties, seek independent professional advice on any
aspect of their duties and responsibilities or the business and activities of the Company, at the Company’s
expense.

During 2019, the Board met seven (7) times. As a matter of policy, the Board secks to meet at least twice
every quarter, and a policy was established whereby early in the calendar year, meetings are scheduled for the
full year, to allow adequate planning and time commitment, subject to the addition of ad hoc meetings as and
when considered necessary.

The following reports the attendance at Board meetings of cach of the Directors during the period under
review:

Name Capacity Meetings atrended while in office
Prof. Juanite Camilen Non-Exccutive (Chairman;) 71/ 17]
My, Richard Abdilla Castillo Non-Tixecutive 4/ 17]
Mtr. Conrad Aquilina Non-Executive 31/ 3]
Mr. Stephen Paris Independent Non-Executive 3]/ 13]
Ms. [acqueline Camilleri Independent Non-Executive (3] /(3]
Mr Steve Tarr Resigned on 4 Seprember 2019 41/ 4
Dr. Godwin Caruana Resigned on 4 September 2019 41/ 4]

Principle 6: Information and Professional Development

On joining the Board, Board members undergo a formal induction programme, whereby the company
secretary informs the incoming members of their statutory director duties and obligations, the requirements
and implications of relevant legislation, as well as their rights, duties, and obligations under the Company’
Articles of Association and internal policies and procedures. Dircctors are also provided with a preseatation
on the activities of the Company and subsidiaries.

On a regular basis, the Ditectors also receive periodic information on the Group’s financial performance and
posidon. The company secretary ensures effective information flows within the Board, committees and
between senior management and Directors, as well as facilitating professional development. The company
secretary advises the Board on governance matters. Directors may, in the course of their duties, seek
independent professional advice on any matter at the Company’s expense. In addition, the Board and its
committees ate given adequate and suitable resources to duly discharge their funcdons in a proper and
effective manner,

The Chicef Executive Officer is responsible for ensuring that management and employees have access to
development and training opportenities to retain and enhance the Group’s competitive positioning, to
safeguard and augment staff morale, and to ensure effective continuity and succession planning, The
Company will provide for additional individual Directors' training on an as required basis.

Principle 7: Evaluation of the Board’s Performance

The Board does not consider it necessary to appoint a committee to carry cut a performance evaluation of its
role, as the Board’s performance is evaluated on an ongoing basis by, and is subject to the constant serutiny
of, the Board itself, the Company’s sharcholders, the market and the rules by which the Company is
regulated as a listed company.

Principle 8;: Committees

The Directors have constituted the following Board committees, the terms of reference of which shall be
determined by the Board from time to time with the purpose of fulfilling the below mentioned purposcs:
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Aundit Committee

The Audit Committee’s primary objective is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities over
the financial reporting processes, financial policies and internal control structures. The Audit Committee
oversees the conduct of the internal and external audit and acts to facilitate communication between the
Board, management and the internal and external auditors. The external auditors are invited to attend the
Audit Comrmittee meetings. The Auadit Committee reports directly to the Board.

The Board has set formal terms of establishment and terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which set
out its composition, role, function, and the parameters of its remit, as well as the procedures and processes
to be complied with in its activities.

The Audit Committee is expected to deal with and advise the Board on issues of financial risk, control and
compliance, and associated assurance of the Company, including:

i  ensuring that the Company adopts, maintains and, at all timces, applies appropriate accounting and
financial reporting processes and procedures;

i.  monitoring of the audit of the Company’s management and annual accounts,

iii.  facilitating the independence of the external audit process and addressing issues arising from the
audit process and ensuring good communication between internal and external audit activities, as
applicable;

iv.  reviewing of the svstems and procedures of internal control implemented by management and of the
financial statements, disclosures and adequacy of financial reporting;

v.  making of recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment of the external auditors
and the approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, following
the relative appointment by the shareholders in the annual general meeting;

vi.  monitoring and reviewing of the external audirors” independence and, ia particular, the provision of
additional services to the Company;
vii.  considering and evaluating the arm’s length nature of refated party transactions that the Company

carties out to ensure that the exccution of any such mansactions are, indeed, at arm’s length and on a
sound commetcial basis and ultimately in the best interests of the Company; and

viil.  ensuring that the Company, at all times, maintains effective ftnancial risk management and internal
financial and audiiing control systems, including compliance functions.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee has the role of assessing any potential conflicts of interest hetween the
duties of the Directors and their respective private interests or duties uneelated to the Company.

The Audit Committee is made up entirely of non-executive Directors, the majority of whom are independent
of the Company, Audit Committee members ate appointed for a period of three years, unless terminated
earlier by the Board. During the period under review, the Audit Committee was composed of Ms. Jacqueline
Camilleri (independent and ron-executive Director), Mr. Richard Abdilla Castillo (non-executive Directot)
and Mr. Stephen Paris (indcpendent and non-cxecutive Dircetor).

The Chaitpersen of the Audit Committee, appointed by the Beard, is entrusted with seporting to the Board
on the wortkings and findings of the Audit Committee, Ms. Jacqueline Camilleri occupied the post of
Chairperson of the Audit Committee during the period under review, which role is subject to rotation
between the members of the Audit Committee on an annnal basis.

All the present members of the Audit Committee are considered by the Board to be comperent in
accounting and/or auditing in terms of the Listing Rules, based on their respective extensive expetience
occupying financial management and auditing roles within various private and public entities, as well as their
respective skills and competencies in financial reporting, financial management, financial auditing and general
financial advisory.

The Audit Committee met once during the vear under review, following its formation in fate 2019, The
meeting was attended by all its members. The Audit Committec is scheduled to meet at least four times in
2020,




RemNom Committee

In view of its size, the Company has taken the view that whilst it considers the role and function of each of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee as important, it would be more efficient for these
committees to be merged into one committee (the “RemNom Committee”) that would serve a dual role.
During the period undet review the RemNom Committee was composed of Prof, Juanito Camilleri (who also
acts s its Chairperson) and Ms. Jacqueline Camilleri. On 17 April 2020, the Mr Stephen Paris was appointed
as 2 member of the RemNom Committee.

In its function as remuneration comemittee, the RemNom Committee is delegated with the oversight of the
remuneration policies implemented by the Company with respect to the Board of Directors, the CEO and
individuals who report directly to the Board of Dircctors. Tn assisting and making recommendations to the
Board of Dircctors in setting out the Company’s remuneration policy, the RemNom Committee secks to
formulate remuneration policies aimed at ateracting, retaining and motivating directors, whether executive or
non-executive, as well as senior management with the right qualities and skills for the benefit of the
Company. In turn, it is responsible for making proposals to the Board on the individual remuneration
packages of directors and senior exccutives and is entrusted with monitoring the level and structure of
remuneration of the non-executive directors. In addition, the RemNom Commitree is responsible tor
reviewing the performance based remuneration incentives that may be adopred by the Company from time
to time and is authorised to determine whether a performance-based bonus or other incentive shouid be paid
out or otherwise.

Ln its function as nomination committee, the RemNom Committee’s task is to propose to the Board
candidates for the position of director, including persons considered to be independent in tetms of the
Listing Rules, whilst also taking into account any recommendation from Sharcholders.

The nominations committee also petiodically assesses the structure, size, composition and performance of
the Board and make tecommendations to the Board regarding any changes, as well as consider issues related
to succession planning. When fulfilling this function, the committee assesses the individual skills, knowledge
and expetience of the Directors, in order to ensure thar that these endow the Board with the requisite
collective skilis, knowledge and experience for the proper functioning of the Company and its oversight by
the Board. It is also entrusted with reviewing the Board’s policy for selection and appointment of seniox
management.

The nominations committee is empoweted by the Ardcles of Association of the Company to reject any
recommendation made to it if, in its considered opinion, the 2ppointiment of the person so recommended as
a Director could be detrimental to the Company’s interests, or if such person is not considered fit and
proper to occupy that positon. The committee and the existing Board members themselves may also make
recommendations for the appointment of new directors at the anoual general meeting. Where the number of
candidates approved by the nominations commnittee is greater than the number of vacancies on the Board, an
election would take place in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

"The RemNom Commitree was not required to meet during the period under review, but is scheduled to
meet in advance of and following the Company’s next annual general meeting, in addition to meetings which
may be held from time to time as well as may be required.

Govemance and Risk Cormmittee

Cognizant of the critical importance of adopting a risk-based approach to its business and operations, and as
part of its endeavours to ensure proper and effective risk management, the Company has established a risk
committee (the “Governance and Risk Committee” or the “GRC”). The GRC is entrusted with:

i. assisting management of each business component with the identification of risks to which the
Group and its busincss and operations are, or may be, exposed to including, but not limited to, client
risk, transaction risk, enterprise and business risk, jurisdictional risk, product risk, and delivery risk,
among others;




it.  risk quantification to assess the potential likelihood of the occurrence of the risks identified and the
potential impact of such occurrence;
iii.  oversight of screening of existing and potential customers and suppliers, including know-your-
customer and duc diligence verifications, and ongoing due diligence theteinafter;
iv.  the design, implementation, and oversight of risk management internal policics, procedures,
processes, controls, systems and governance structures;
v.  the ongoing monitordng and evaluatdon of risks;
vi.  reportng on findings of evaluations undertaken and recommendations to address weaknesses or
deficiencies in the processes and procedutes of the Group; and
vii.  effective and timely implementation of remedial actions to address governance and risk management
deficiencies.

The GRC reports directly to the Board of Ditrectots of the Company. During the period under review, the
GRC was composed of Mr. Stephen Paris (Chairperson), Ms. Jacqueline Camilieri and Mr. Conrad Aquilina.
In determining the composition of the GRC, a balance is sought between expertise and experience in legal
and regulatory affairs, compliance with anti-money laundering legislation, and 1.T. and technical expettise,
including in particuiar cybet-security. "The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, together with members
of senior management, may be invited to meetings of the GRC from time to time as observers.

When identifving, evaluating and monitoring the risks to which the Group is, or may become, exposed to,
the GRC adopts a three-pronged approach to risk assessments comprised of risk identification, risk
quantification and risk evaluation, Where appropriate, the GRC seeks to identify and implement the
appropriate measures to be implemented in order to properly and effectively manage the risks identified.

Principles 9 and 10: Relations with Sharcholders and with the Market, and Institutional Sharcholders

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a dialogue with ies shareholders and of keeping the
market informed to ensure that its strategics and performance are well understood,

The Company is planning to communicate with its shareholders through the Company’s Annual General
Meeting (the “AGM?). The Chairman of the Board ensures that all Directors attend the AGM and that
both the Chairman of the Boatd and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the RemNom Committee and
the Governance and Risk Committee are available to answer questions. Both the Chairman and Chief
FExecutive Officer also ensure that sufficient contact is mainrained with major shareholders to understand
issues and concerns.

The Company is highly committed to having an open channel of communicasion and effective relationship
with its sharcholders and the wider market and cnsures that the market is provided with regular, timely,
accurate, comprehensive and comparable information to enable existing and prospective investots to make
informed investment decisions. In this respect, over and above its statutory and regulatory requirements
relating ro the AGM, the publication of annual and interim financial statements, interim directors’ statements
and Company announcements, the Company secks to engage with investors and the market on a regular
basis, and the Company holds meetings with major stockbrolkers and financial intermediaries.

Apart from the AGM, the Company is planning to communicate with its shareholders by way of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements and through the Company’s website (https:/ /harvest.tech/) which also

contains information about the Company and its business, including an Investor Relations section.

The office of the company sceretary also assists the Board in maintaining regular communication between
the Company and its investors. lndividual shareholders can raise matters relating to their shareholdings and
the business ot the Group at any time throughout the year and are given the opportunity to ask questions at
the AGM or to submit written questions in advance.




Principle 11: Conflicts of Interest

I'he Directors are fully aware of their responsibility to always act in the best interests of the Company and its
sharcholders irrespective of whoever appointed or clected them to serve on the Board.

On joining the Board and regulatly thereafter, the Directors are informed of their obligations on dealing in
securitics of the Company within the parameters of law, including the Listing Rules, and Directors follow the
required notification procedures.

It is the practice of the Board that when a potential conflict of interest atises in connection with any
transaction or other matter, the potential conflict of interest is declared, so that steps may be taken to ensure
that such items are appropriately addressed. By virtue of the Memorandum and Atrticles of Association, the
Directors are obliged to keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interest that could potentially
conflict with that of the Company. The Board member concerned shall not take part in the asscssment by
the Board as to whether a conflict of interest exists. A director shall not vore in respect of any contract,
arrangement, transaction or proposal in which he/she has a material interest in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The Board believes that this is a procedure that
achieves compliance with both the letter and rationale of Principle Eleven of the Code.

During the period under review, the Company did not enter into any material agreements in which any one
of the Directors was, directly or indirectly, interested. In situations giving rise to potential conflicts of
interest, the conflicted Directors are to act in accordance with the majority decision of those Directors who
are not conflicted in the proposed contract, transaction, or arrangement, and in line with the advice of
independent legal advice, where required.

Any material transactions with related parties, which pose intrinsic potential conflicts of interests, require the
approval of the Audit Committee, which is charged with ensuring that such transactions ate necessary for the
conduct of the Company’s business and ate transacted on an arm’s length basis. Fatthermore, such material
transactions with related party transactions are subject to the Listing Rules regulating the approval process
for transactions of such nature, inciuding disclosure and shareholder approval requirements that may apply if
certain conditions arc met.

Save as stated below, the Directors are not aware of any potential conflicts of interest which could relate to
their roles within the Company:

i Mz Richard Abdilla Castillo sits on the Board of Directors of other companies forming part of the
group of companies of which the majority shareholder of the Company (1923 Investments p.l.c.) (®
63261) forms part, namely Hili Ventuares Limited (C 57902);

ii. Ms, Jacqueline Camilleri sits on the Board of Dircctors of other companies forming part of the group
of companies of which the majotity shareholder of the Company (1923 Investments p.l.c) (C 63261)
forms part, namely Hili Finance Company p.l.c. (€ 85692); and

i, Mr. Conrad Aquilina is 2 member of the senior management team of Hili Ventures Limited {(C 57902).

None of the Directors held any disclosable interest in any contracts or arrangements either subsisting at the
end of the last tinancial vear ot entered during this financial year.

Principle 12: Corporate Social Responsibility

The Directors also seck to adhere to accepted principles of corporate social responsibility in their
management practices of the Company in relation to the Group’s workforce and the community in general.

Over the period under review, the Group has supported several organisations engaged in charitable and
philanthropic wortk. As part of its commitment towards the environment, the Group has zlso introduced a
number of measures aimed ar minimising its carbon footprint, such as maximising the efficiency of use of
the Group’s flect of vehicles through better job planning and real-time vehicle tacking,
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The Group recognises that its workforce is one of its main assets, essential for achieving its objectives and
sustained growth. The Group recognises the need to embed good governance in its day-to-day operations
and, for this purpose, has introduced a Code of Conduct that establishes the general guidelines governing the
conduct of all of its employees in fulfilling their functions and their commercial and professional relations.

The Group also seeks to motivate its emplovees and to create trust and mutually beneficial relations, To this
end, the Group’s employees are encouraged to patticipate in a job satisfaction surveys, the results of the last
of which indicate an average satisfaction rate higher than 85%.The objective of the survey is to gauge
employee sentiment to better understand the motivating and (de)motivating factors that the Group’s
employees experience, with the aim of taking on board the recommendations put forward by its staff during
this exercise. For instance, one key outcome of the exercise undertaken in the vear under review is a general
conscnsus on the need to sustain the Group's investment in continued professional development (‘CPD?),
which is a core principle of its corporate strategy so as to ensure that Group’s employees are equipped with
the vight skill set and competencies, whilst maintaining sufficient flexibility and aptitude to keep abreast with
the latest developments in the industry, to address chalienges, and, ultimately, to maximise and capitalise
upon opportunities.

C. Non-compliance with the Code

The Dircctors believe that good corporate governance is 2 function of a mix of checks and balances that best
suit the Company and its business. Accordingly, whilst there are best practices that can be of general
application, the structures that may be required within the context of larger companies are not necessarily
and objectively the structures for companies whose sizc and/or business dictate otherwise. 1t is in this
context that the Directors have adopted a corporate governance framework within the Company that is
designed to better suit the Company, its business, scale, and complexity, whilst ensuring proper checks and
balatzces.

Taking the above into account and considering that the Code is not mandatory and that the provisions
thereof may be departed from provided that reasonable and justifiable citcumstances exist and are adequately
explained, the Directors set out below the Code Provisions with which the Company does not comply and
what are, in its view, a reasonable and justifiable basis for such departure from the recommendations set out
in the Code relating to the composition of the Board.

Code Provision Explanation

Principle 3: Bxecutive and Non-  As explained in Principle 3 in Section B, the Board is composed entirely
Execurive Directors on the Board of non-cxecutive Directors.

The Company is of the view that the composition of the Board of
Directors is suitable when taking into account the following
considerations: (i) ultimately, the Company acts as the holding company
of the Group, with no day-te-day operational activites of its own. Rather,
the day-fo-day activities of the Company are the setting of the strategic
direction and overall oversight thereof, being an activity that non-
executive directors are well suited to be entrusted with; (i) the Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ) and the Chief Tinancial Officer (CFQ) are
invited as observers at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company, acting as the liaison between the senior management of the
Company and the Board of Directors; and (iil) the managing directors
of each operating subsidiary of the Company (that is, of P'I'L, Limited,
APCO Limited, APCO Systems Limited, and Ipsyon Limited) report
directly to the CHO, ensuring a regular and open communication
channel among members of the senior management team,




Principle 4: Succession Policy for  Although the Chicf Fxecutive Officer is responsible for the recruitment

the Board (Code provision 4.2.7)

Principle 7: Evaluation of the
Board’s Performance (Code
provision 7.1)

Principle 8: Committces

(Code provision 8.A -

Remuneration Cornmirtee}

Principle 9: Relations with
shareholders and the market
(Code provision 9.3)

and appointment of senior management, the Cornpany has not
established a formal succession plan. In practice, howevet, the Board
and CEQ are actively engaged in succession planning and in ensuring
that appropriate schemes to recruit, retain and motivate employees and
senior management are in place.

The Board has not appointed 2 committee for the putpose of
undertaking an evaluation of the Board’s performance in accordance
with the requirements of Code Provision 7.1.

Having conducted an informal review of its own performance over the
period under review it is the Board’s view that all members of the
Board, individually and collectively, have contributed in line with the
required levels of diligence and skill, In addition, the Board believes that
its current composition endows the Board with a cross-section of skills
and experience, not only with respect to the specific business of the
Company, but also in a wider range of business areas and skills. This
ptocess was conducted by the Board itself rather than by a Commirtee
chaired by a non-executive Director as required by the Code.

The Board belicves that the size of the Company and the Board itsclf
does not warrant the establishment of a committec specifically for the
purpose of carrying out a performance evaluation of its role. Whilst the
requirement under Code Provision 7.1 might be useful in the context of
larger companies having a more complex set-up and a larger Board, the
size of the Company’s Board is such that it should enable it to evaluate
its own performance without the requirement of sctting up an ad-boc
committee for this purpose. The Board shall retain this matter under
review over the coming year

During the vear under review, the post of chairperson of the RemNom
Committee of the Company was occupied by Prof. Juanito Camilleri,
the non-excutive Chairman of the Board of Directors. Although Listing
Rule 8.A.1 requires that the chairperson of the remuneration committee
is an independent non-executive director, the Board of Directors is of
the view that Prof. Camilleri is best-placed, amongst the members of
the RemNom Committee, to occupy the role of chairperson, including
but not limitedly by virtue of his in-depth knowledge of the Company
and underlying management structure across the Group, and ability to
formulate proposals relative to the remuneration of directoss and senior
executives of the Group commensurate and atruned with the demands
and expectations of the technology sector, to which he has had
extensive and far-reaching exposure since its inception locally. The
Board considers that the terms of reference of the RemNom
Committee are such as to ensure that the proper and impartial
functioning of the RemNom Committee are not impacted, in any
manner, by the status of the particular director holding the post of
chairperson of the RemNom Committee.

There are no formal procedures in place within the Company for the
resolution of conflicts between minority and controlling shareholders,
net do the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
contemplate any mechanism for arbitration in these instances.
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Principle 9: Relations with The Company does not have a formal policy in place to allow minority

shareholders and the market shareholders to present an issue to the Board. In practice, however, the

(Code provision 9.4) open channel of communication between the Company and minority
shareholders via the office of the Company Secretaty and the Chairman
is such that any issue that may merit bringing to the attention of the
Bozard may be transmitted via the Company Secretary or the Chairman,
who 15 in attendance at all meetings of the Board of Directors.
Turthermore, the Company is in contact with the Malta Association of
Small Sharcholders (MASS) which may, from time to time, bting
matters of interest to private investors to the attention of the Board, for
its coasideration.

D. Internal controis
The key features of the Group’s system of internal controls are as follows:

Organisation

The Group operates through Board of Directors of subsidiary companies with clear reporting lines and
delegation of powers. The Company’s Chaitman occupics the post of chairman of the Board of Dircctors of
the Company’s subsidiary companies and the Chief Iixecutive Officer (CEQO) and the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) are invited as observers at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company, acting as the
liaison between the senior management of the Company and the Board of Directors; and (iii) the managing
directors of each operating subsidiary of the Company (that is, of PTL Limired, APCO Limited, APCO
Systems Limited, and Ipsyon Limited) report directly to the CEO, ensuring a regular and open
communication channel among members of the senior management team.

Comtrol environment

The Group is committed to the highest standards of business conduct and seeks to maintain these standards
across all its operations. Although the Company has not appointed an internal auditor, the Board of
Directors believes that the combination of checks and balances on the finance function of the Company,
including the remit and responsibilities of the Audit Committee and the Governance and Risk Committee,
the Company’s finance policies and procedures, as well as the Company’s statutory and legal obligations as a
listed entity, provide adequate and suitable controls that arc commensurate with the size and complexity of
its business and operations. The Board of Directors will retain this matter under review in the coming year.

As part of the good governance best practices adopted by the Group, the Group implements various
policies, procedurcs, systems and controls, designed to detect, prevent, and properly and cffectively midgate
and manage legal, regulatory, business and commercial risks to which the Group is or may become exposed
to. In this respect, the Group has also adopted the following policies:

- Code of Conduct and Whistle-blower Policy: this policy sets out the Group’s approach to the
prevention and detection of corrupt practices or bribery, as well as setting adequate deterrents and
punitive measures to discourage such conduct and to promote employees to blow the whistle on
such conduct.

- Health and Safety Policy: this policy sets out the Group’s approach to ensuring a safe and sccure
work environment, providing employees with guidance as to the pre-emptive or resolutive measures
to be implemented when dealing with unsafe or hazardous conditions, injuties or accidents arising in
the course of the activities of the Group. In turn this policy is supplemented by a comprehensive
Health and Safety Manual, providing a detailed instructions and guidance manual on the processes
and procedures to be followed. In this respect, the Group has appointed a dedicated Health &
Safety Officer, responsible for oversecing compliance with the Group’s policy and for handling
incidents that may arise from time to time. The Group undertakes a periodic risk assessment, with
the objective of identitying any weaknesses in the Group’s property, plant and equipment, or in its
interrral systems and controls and so assess how this may impact the Group’s exposure to risks
assoctated with health and safety and what rectifying measures ought to be implemented.
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“ach policy scts out clear reporting lines, to enable employees to disclose incidents to theit superiors in a
confidental and secure manner, without fear of reptisal. Policies are periodically reviewed and updated.

"I'he Group has an appropriate organisational sttucture for financial planning, executing, controlling and
monitoring business operations in order to achieve Group objectives. Measures taken include physical
controls, segregation of duties and reviews by management and the external auditors. Lines of responsibility
and delegation of authority arc documented.

The Group and the subsidiary companies comprising it have implemented control procedures designed to
ensure complete and accurate accounting for financial transactions and to limit the potential exposure o loss
of assets ot fraud. In particular, the Group adopts:

- Finance Policies and Procedures: designed to ensure best practices in internal controls by
management and members of staff, These policies and procedures cover procurement, credit
control, travel policies, credit card payments, bank reconciliations among others; and

- HR policies and procedures: which govern best practices in employee recruiting, careet
development, training, performance management, termination of contract, among others.

These policies, procedures, controls and systems are reviewed from time to tdme in order to reflect new
operational and market realitics, ensuring that the Group evolves in tandem with the latest developments in a
timely manner, seeking pre-empting chaflenges and maximising potential.

"The Group is committed to legal and regulatory compliance and devotes significant attention to promoting
and ensuring acquiescence with the legal and regulatory framework affecting its various operations, The
Group has its own inhouse legal counsel, Dr Jean Noel Cutajar, and in addition is able to engage third party
legal experts where necessary through ongoing and, or ad-hoc arrangements, in order to provide sector-
specific legal and advice and the necessary supportt and assistance, with the objective of properly mitigating
the business and legal risks of undertaking its activities.

Risk identification and assessment

Group management is responsible together with each of the subsidiary companies” management, for the
identification and evaluation of key risks applicable to theit areas of business. These risks are assessed on a
continual basis and may be associated with a variety of internal or external sources including control
breakdowns, disruption in information systems, competition, natural catastrophe and reguiatory
requirements. The Governance and Risk Committee, the setting up of which transcends the principles set
out in the Code, plays a central role in this risk assessment, monitoring and control process.

Information and comununication

Group companies participate in periodic strategic reviews, which include consideration of long-term financial
projections and the evaluation of business alternatives.

Monitoring and corrective action

There arc clear and consistent procedures in place for monitoring the system of internal financial controls.
The Audit Committee plans to mect regularly during the year and, within its terms of reference as approved
by the Tisting Authority, reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s systemns of internal financial controls. The
Audit Committee receives reports from management and the external auditors.




E. General meetings

Annual General Mecting (AGM)
The AGM is the highest decision-making body of the Company.

All sharcholders registered in the Sharcholders” Register at the relevant registration record date, have the
right to participate in the AGM and to vote thereat. A shatcholder who cannot participate in at the AGM
can be represented by proxy.

A general meeting is deemed 1o have been duly convened if at least twenty-one (21) days’ notice is given in
writing to all persons entitled to receive such notice, which must specify the place, the day and the hour of
the meeting, and in case of special business, the general nature of that business, and shall be accompanied by
a statement regarding the cffect and scope of any proposed resolution in respect of such special business.
The notice period may be reduced to fourteen (14) davs if certain conditions are satisfied. The quotum of
Shareholders required is not less than 51% of the nominal value of the issued Shares entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting,

The agenda of the AGM will comprise of the ordinary business of the AGM, covering the presentation and
approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements, the declaration of dividends, election of Directors
and the approval of their remuneration, the appointment of the audirors and the authorisation of the
Directors to set the auditors’ fees, together with any special business specified in the notice calling the AGM.

Extraordinary general meetings (EGMs)
The Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting whenever they think fit. In addidon, any two

members or more of the Company holding at least ten per cent (10%) of the Shares conferring a right to
attend and vote at general meetings of the Company, may convene an extraordinary general mecting,
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Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Adminisirative expenses
Operating profit / (loss)
investment income
Finance income

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of subsidiary
Profit before tax

Tax expense

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Notes

10
22
11
14

16

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
16,049,372 15,568,699 352,703 443,492
(8,963,451} (9,887 672) - -
7,085,921 5,681,027 352,703 443,492
38,119 17,620 2,336 -
{3,899,083) {4,731,235) (1,000,771) {1,350,388)
3,224,957 967,412 {645,732) {906,896)
- - 2,579,591 2,218,290
20,644 12,776 65,181 35,259
{151,122} {51,543) (44,193) -
{58,363) - {264,899) -
3,036,116 928,645 1,689,948 1,346,653
(947,344) (347,969) (594,516) (496,797)
2,088,772 580,676 1,095,432 849,856
0.0917 0.0255 - -
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Statements of financial position

Assets

Non-current

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Piant and eguipment
Right-of-use assets
investment in subsidiaries
Investment in joint ventures
Other investments

Loans and receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current

Inventories

Loans and receivables
Contract assets

Other assesis

Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Notes

17
18
19
20
22
23
24
25
36

26
25

27
28

29

S
-
A

The group The group The company The company
2019 2013 2019 2018

€ € € €
7,493,487 7,493 487 - -
1,215,923 1,249,903 - 6,298
248,224 292,548 176 1,788
1,982,618 - - -
- - 11,119,723 11,184,871

50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

- 1,064,002 450,000 1,201,825

315,582 323,724 106,569 13,284
11,305,835 10,473,664 11,726,468 12,458,064
2,419,450 739,513 - -
- - 949,422 -

215,998 905,068 - -
109,219 304,426 8,557 1,685
4,394,217 5,927,066 52,829 2,400,920
403,424 330,399 403,424 330,399
2,133,336 990,097 236,709 242,704
9,675,644 9,196,559 1,650,941 2,975,708
20,981,479 19,670,223 13,377,409 15,433,772
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Statements of financial position - continued

Notes The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2018 2018
€ € € €
Equity
Share capital 30 11,390,318 11,390,318 11,380,318 11,390,318
Other equity 31 (2,821,365) {2,821,365) - -
Retained earnings 1,784,463 645,959 194,693 49 261
Total equity 10,353,416 9,214,912 11,585,011 11,439,579
Liabilities
Non-current
Bank barrowings 32 100,000 100,000 - -
Lease liabilities 21 1,722,847 - - -
Other financial liabilities 35 721,321 2,132,974 721,321 2,132,975
Deferred tax liabilities 36 338,924 273,072 - -
2,882,892 2,506,046 721,321 2,132,975
Current
Bank borrowings 32 403,998 934,679 - -
Lease liabilities 21 283,892 - - -
Trade and other payables 33 3,212,435 2,690,662 71,077 145,429
Contract liabilities 34 2,244 737 1,591,781 - -
Other financial liabilities 35 1,000,000 2,371,862 1,000,000 1,715,788
Current tax liabilities 600,109 360,281 - -
7,745,171 7,949,265 1,071,677 1,861,218
Total liabilities 10,628,063 10,455,311 1,792,398 3,884,193
Total equity and liabilities 20,981,479 19,670,223 13,377,409 15,433,772

The financial statements on pages 28 to 93 were approved by the board of directors, authorised for issue on
24 April 2020 and signed on its behalt by:

-

Fdilla Castillo

Prof Juanito Camilleri
Chairman

Director




Statement of changes in equity - the group

At 1 January 2018

Adjustment from the adoption of IFRS
15

Adjusted balance at T January 2018

Dividends

Transactions with owners

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Minority interest on purchase of

subsidiary
Full acguisition of subsidiary

At 31 December 2018

Lot
it

Attributable to Non-
Share Retained equity holders  controlling Total
capital Otherequity earnings of the parent interests equity
€ € € € € €
11,390,318 (2,821,365) 971,758 9,540,711 - 9,540,711
- - (61,863) (61,869) - (61,869)
11,390,318 {2,821,365) $09,889 9,478,842 - 9,478,842
- - {750,000) (750,000) - (750,000)
- - {750,000) (750,000} - {750,000}
- - 580,676 580,676 - 580,676
- - 580,676 580,676 - 580,676
- - - - (94,6086) {94,606)
- - (94,606) {94,606) 94,606 -
- - {94,606) (94,608) - (94,606}
11,390,318 (2,821,365) 645,959 9,214,912 - 9,214,912
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Statement of changes in equity — the group — continued

Aftributable to Non-
Share Retained equity holders controlling Total
Capital Other equity earnings of the parent interests equity
€ € € € € €
At 1 January 2019 11,390,318 (2,821,365) 645,959 9,214,812 - 9,214,912
Dividends - - (950,268) {950,268) - (950,268)
Transactions with owners - - {950,268) {950,268) - (950,268)
Profit for the year - - 2,088,772 2,088,772 - 2,088,772
Total comprehensive income - - 2,088,772 2,088,772 - 2,088,772
At 31 December 2019 11,390,318 {2,821,365) 1,784,463 10,353,416 - 10,353,416

Retained earnings comprise current and prior period resulss as disclosed in the statements of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

Retained earnings include an amount of € 315,582 (2018: € 323,724} relating to deferred tax assets which are
undistributablc in terms of the Companies Act, Cap. 386.
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Statement of changes in equity — the company

Retained

Share capital earnings Total equity

€ € €

At 1 January 2018 11,390,318 (50,595) 11,339,723
Dividends - {750,000) (750,000)
Transactions with owners - {750,000) {750,000}
Profit for the year - 849,856 849,856
Total comprehensive income - 849,856 849,856
At 31 December 2018 11,390,318 49,261 11,438,579
At 1 January 2019 11,390,318 49,261 11,439,579
Dividends - (950,000) (950,000)
Transactions with owners - (950,000) {950,000)
Profit for the year - 1,085,432 1,085,432
Total comprehensive income - 1,095,432 1,095,432
At 31 December 2019 11,390,318 194,693 11,585,011

Retained earnings comprise current and priot period results as disclosed in the statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income .

Retained earnings include an amount of € 106,569 (2018: € 13,284) relating to deferted tax assets which are
undistributable in terms of the Companies Act, Cap. 386.




Statements of cash flows

Notes The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Operating activities
Profit before tax 3,038,118 928,645 1,689,948 1,346,653
Adjustments 37 892,504 572,606 (2,327,772)  {1,957.,436)
Net changes in working capital 37 147,375 {1,785,896) 488,096 446,141
Tax paid (863,820) (604,721) - -
Tax refunded 143,228 259,524 142,031 220,845
Net cash generated from (used in)
operating activities 3,455,403 {629,842) (27,697) 56,203
investing activities
Payments to acquire plant and equipment (58,831} (67,848) - (532)
Payments to acquire intangible assets (317,455) (398,019) - -
Proceeds from disposal of plant and
equipment - 15,887 - -
Cash transferred upon disposal of subsidiary (4,531) - - -
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 94,455 - 168,603 -
Dividends received from subsidiaries - - 1,561,735 -
Net cash (used in) generated from
investing activities (286,362} {449,980) 1,721,338 (532)




Statements of cash flows - continued

Financing activities

Payments for lease obligations to third parties
Payments for lease obligations to related
company

Interest paid on leasing arrangements with
third parties

Interest paid on leasing arrangements with a
related company

Movement in loans and receivables
Movement in gther financial iabilities
Proceeds from bank loan

Repayment of bank lcan

Interest received

Interest paid on other financial liabilities
Dividends paid

Net cash (used in) generated from

financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Notes The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

(102,386) - - -
(184,535) - - -

{20,948) - - -

(60,477) - - -

- 1,242,690 {714,050) 854,036

(1,077,272} {560,030) (1,006,574) (706,817)

- 300,000 - -

(160,000) - ~ -

20,462 - 65,181 35,259

(69,697) (26,438) (44,193) -

(268) - - -

(1,595,121) 956,222 (1,699,836} 182,478
1,573,920 (123,600) (5,995} 238,149

255,418 379,018 242,704 4,555

29 1,829,338 255,418 236,709 242,704
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Nature of operations

The principal activities of the group are the sale, maintenance and servicing of information technology
solutions, security svstems and operates an electronic payment gateway. The company acts as a holding
coOmpany.

2 General information and statement of compliance with IFRS

The company was incorporated on 23 December 2013 as a holding company. The registered address and
principal place of business of the company is Nineteen Twenty-Three, Vailetta Road, Marsa MRS 3000,
Malta. Consequent to a resolution of the shareholders taken on 22 October 2019, the company re-
denominated its entire share capital from 11,390,318 ordinary shares of € 1 each to € 0.50 shares cach and
also converted its status from a private Himited lability company to a public limited liability company,
effective from 6 November 2019.

The financial statements of the company and the consolidated financial statements of the group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
Intcrnational Accounting Standards Board (TASB) and as adopted by the Huropean Union (EU), and in
accordance with the Companies Act, Cap 386.

In 2019, the group has adopted new guidance for the recognition of leases (see note 3.1 below). The new
Standard has been applied using the modified retrospective approach, with any cumulative effect of adoption
as at 1 January 2019 being recognised as a single adjustment to retained carnings. Accordingly, the group is
not required to present a third statement of financial position as at that date. There was no cffect on retained
earnings arising from the first-time adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ as the group had no leases classified as
finance leases under IAS 17,

The financial statements are presented in euro (€), which is also the functional currency of the company and
the group.

3 New or revised Standards or Interpretations
314 New standards adopted as at 1 January 2019
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The group has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases” as at 1 January 2019 using the Standard’s modified retrospective
approach.

IFRS 16 “.cascs’ replaces TAS 17 Leases” along with three Interpretations (IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease’, S1C 15 ‘Operating Leases-Incentives” and S1C 27 “lvaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’).
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The adoption of this new Standard has resulted in the group recognising a right-of-use asset and rclated lease
liability in connection with all former operating leases except for those identified as low-value or having a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months from the date of initial application.

The group has elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-usc asset for
operating leases in existence at the date of initial application of TFRS 16, being 1 Januaty 2019. At this date,
the group has also elected to measure the right-ot-usc assets at an amount equal to the lease lizbility adjusted
for any prepaid or accrued lease payments that existed at the date of transition. As a result, no equity
adjustment has been recognised on initial application of IFRS 16. Comparative information is not restated.

The group did not enter into contracts of low value assets during 2019.

On transition to IFRS 16 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease Habilides
recognised was 3.93%.

The group has opted to present right-of-use asscts scparately. There were therefore no changes to the
group’s property, plant and equipment and a further reconciliation is not required. The net present values of
lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period are shown separately with current and non-current labilities,

‘I'he group has benetited from the use of hindsight for determining the lease term when considering options
to extend and terminate leascs.

Since the group did not have any leases classified as finance leases under [AS 17, a reconciliation of financial
statement line items from IAS 17 to ITRS 16 is not applicable,

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 (as disclosed in
the audited financial statements at 31 December 2018) to the lease liabilitics recognised at 1 January 2019:

€
Total operating lease commitments before discounting disclosed at 31
December 2018 2,453,357
Discounted using incremental borrowing rate (236,527)
Total lease liabilities recognised under IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 2,216,830

The group did not have any leases of low valuc asscts, leases with remaining term of less than 12 months,
variable leasc payments, finance lease obligations at the end of the previous reporting period or any other
adjustments that would be required to the amount reported in total operating lease commitments at 31
December 2018 in determining the lease liability recognised in accordance with TFRS 16 at 1 january 2019.

3.2 Standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet
effective and have not been adopted early by the group

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, several new, but not yet effective, Standards,
amendments to existing Standards, and Interpretations have been published by the IASB. None of these
Standards, amendments or Interpretations have been adopted eatly by the group.

Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period beginning on or
after the effective date of the pronouncement. New Standards, amendments and Interpretations neither
adopted nor listed by the group have not been disclosed as they ate not expected to have a material impact
on the group’s financial statements.




4 Summary of accounting policies

4.1 Overall considerations

The consolidated financial statetents have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and
measurement bases summarised below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the financial statements of the companies
comprising the group as detailed in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

4.2 Presentation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with 1AS 1 Presentation of Finandal Statersents

IAS 1),

4.3 Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements consolidate those of the parent company and all of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 20119. The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to affect those teturns through its power over the
subsidiary. The subsidiarics have a reporting date of 31 December,

All transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales
ate reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment losses from the group
perspective, Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the group.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaties acquired or disposed of during the year are
recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

4.4 Business combinations

The group applics the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the group to obtain conmrol of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
valucs of assets transferred, habilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group, which includes the
fair value of any asset or liabilicy arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

The group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in 2 business combipation regardless
of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the
acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

4.5 Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is included in the company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment loss that may have arisen. Income from investment is recognised oaly to the extent of
distributions received by the company from post-acquisition profits. Distributions reccived in excess of such
profits are regarded as a recovery of the investment and are recognised as a reduction of the cost of the
investment.
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At the end of cach reporting petiod, the company reviews the carrying amount of its investment in
subsidiaries to determine whether there is any indication of impairment and, if any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the investment is estimated. An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying
amount of an investment exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. An impairment loss that has been previously recognised is reversed if the
carrying amount of the investment exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had beena previously recognised. Impairment losses and reversals are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

4.6 investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investec but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint arrangement is an arraogement of which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agrecd shating of control of an arrangement, which cxists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

The results and assets and liabilitics of associates/joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity methad of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held
for salc, in which casc it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-currenr Asscts Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates/joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the group's share of net assets of
the associates/joint ventures, less any impairment in the value of individual investments.

When the group's share of losses of an associate/joint venture exceeds the group's interesc in that
associate/joint venture (which includes anv long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the group's
niet investment in the associate/joint venturc), the group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associatc or joint venture.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of an associate/joint ventute recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and Habilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

4.7 Acquisition of entities and businesses under common control

The acquisition of subsidiaries under common control is accounted for under the principles of predecessor
accounting as from the date these subsidiaries are acquired by the holding company’s parent at their previous
cartying amounts of assets and liabilities included in the consolidated financial statements of the company’s
parent. Differences on acquisition between the consideration given in exchange for the acquired entities and
the amounts at which the assets and liabilities of the acquired are initially recognised are included within

equity.
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4.8 Acquisition of subsidiaries

The acquisition of subsidiaries that are not under common control is accounted for by applving the
acquisition methed. The consideration is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange
of assets given, liabilides incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the acquirer in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs ate recognised in profit or loss as incurred, except for costs
to issuc debt ot equity securities.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date, except as specifically required by other International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU. A contingent lability assumed it a business combination is recognised at
the acquisition date if therc is a present obligation that arises from past cvents and its fair value can be
measured rcliably.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Where necessary, in preparing these consolidated financial
statements, appropriate adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policics in line with those used by group entitics. Intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation,

4.9 Goodwill

Goodwili arising in a business combination that is accounted for using the acquisition method is recognised
as an asset at the date that control is acquired. Goodwill is measured as the excess of (a) the aggregate of: (i)
the consideration transferred; (ii) che amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; and {jii) in a
business combination achicved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; and (b) the net of the acquisiion-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed.

The goodwill is initially recognised as an asser at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losscs. Any gain on a bargain purchasc, after reasscssment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

4.10 Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their sharcholders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation, may be initially measured eithet at
the present ownership interests proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets ot at fair value, The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
After initial recognition, non-controlling interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the non-controlling interests” share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Non-coatrolling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries ate
presented separately from the holding company’s ownets’ equity therein. Non-controlling interests in the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of consolidated subsidiaries are also disclosed separately.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.




4.11 Revenue recognition

Revenue for the group atises mainly from the sale, maintenance and servicing of information technology
solutions, sceurity systems and operates an clectronic payment gateway.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the group follows a 5-step process:

1. Tdentifving the contract with a customer

2. ldentifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenuc when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The group often eaters into transactions involving a range of the group’s products and scrvices, as described
above. In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the various performance
obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes
any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised cither at a point in time or over time, when {or as) the group satisfics performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

The group recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance
obligations and reports these amounts as coatract linbilities in the statement of financial position (sce note
34). Similarly, if the group satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the group
recognises cither a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of financial position, depending on whether
sumcthing other than the passage of time is required befote the consideration is duc,

Sale of information technology solutions, security systems and other machinery

Revenuc from the sale of information technology solutions, sccurity systems and other machinery for a fixed
fee is recognised when or as the group transfers contro!l of the assets to the customer. Invoices for products
and services transferred are due upon receipt by the customer, which is usnaily upon the sale of the product
to the customer and instalfation of the items or products sold. Control for these products is usually
transfered at the point in time and occurs when the customer takes undisputed delivery of the goods.

When such items are either customised or sold together with significant integration services, the goods and
services represent a single combined performance obligation over which control is considered to transfer
over time. This is because the combined product is unique to each customer (has no alternative use) and the
group has an enforceable right to payment for the work completed to date. Revenue for these performance
obligations is recognised over time as the customisation ot integration work is performed, using the cost-to-
cost method to estimate progress towards completion. As costs are generally incurred uniformly as the work
progresses and are considered to be proportionate to the entity’s performance, the cost-to-cost method
provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods and services to the customer.

Lach major contract is nevertheless evaluated for revenue recognition on its own and the group determines
when control is effectively transferred depending on the specific circumstances.

For sales of software that arc neither customised by the group nor subject to significant integration services,
the licence period commences upon delivery. For sales of software subject to significant customisation or
integration services, the licence period begins upon commencement of the related services.




Maintenance and servicing

The group enters into fixed price maintenance contracts with its customers for terms between one and three
years in lengrh. Customers are required to pay either quarterly or vearly in advance for each respective service
period and the relevant payment duc dates are specified in each contract.

The group enters into agreements with its customers to perform regularly scheduled maintenance services on
the various goods purchased from the group. Revenue is recognised over time based on the ratio between
the numbet of hours of maintenance services provided in the current period and the total number of such
hours expected to be provided under cach contract. This method best depicts the transfer of services to the
customer because: (a) details of the services to be provided are specified as part of the agreed mainierance
program relative to the maintenance requirements of the items sold, and (b) the group has a long history of
providing these services to its customers, ailowing it to make reliable esimates of the total number of hours
involved in providing the service,

Consulting and developrment of [T systems

The group enters into contracts for the design, development and installation of 1T systems in exchange fora
fixed fee and recognises the related reveaue over time. Due to the high degree of interdependence between
the various elements of these projects, they are accounted for as a single performance obligation. When a
contract also includes promises to perform after-sales services, the total transaction price is allocated to each
of the distinct performance obligations identifiable under the contract on the basis of its reladve stand-alone
selling price,

To depict the progress by which the group transfers control of the systems to the customer, and to cstablish
when and to what extent revenue can be recognised, the group measures its progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation by comparing actual hours spent to date with the total estimated
hours required to design, develop, and install each system. The hours-to-hours basis provides the most
faithful depiction of the transfer of goods and services to each customer due to the group’s ability to make
reliable estimates of the total number of hours required to perform, arising from its significant historicat
expetience constructing similat systems.

Most such arrangements include detailed customer payment schedules. When payments received from
customers exceed revenuce recognised to date on a particular contract, any excess (a contract liability) is
reported in the statement of financtal position (see note 34).

The construction of I'T systems normally takes 10 - 12 months from commencement of design through to
completion of installation. As the period of time between customer payment and performance will always be
one vear or less, the group applies the practical expedient in IFRS 15.63 and does not adjust the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of financing,

In obtaining these contracts, the group incurs somce incremental costs. As the amortsation petiod of these
costs, if capitatised, would be less than one year, the group makes use of the practical expedient in IFRS
15.94 and expenses them as they incur. Such incremental costs are not considered to be material,

Payment gateway

‘The group enters into transactions with parties for the access to a payment gateway. The group’s revenue is
mainly derived from the actual volume of traffic transacted in the reporting period on the paytent gateway
and on other fixed charges. The price is agreed and established with the customer tn written contracts and is
allocated to the performance obligation accordingly. Prices are based on established amounts for such
services. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.




412 Interest and dividends

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. These are
reported within “finance income” and “finance costs’.

Dividends are recognised at the time the right to recelve payment is established.

4.13 Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service as incurred.
4.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs inctude the costs incurred in obtaining externat financing. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifving assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised from
the time thar expeaditure for these assets and borrowing costs aze being incurted and activides that are
necessary to prepare these assets for their intended use or sale are in progress. Borrowing costs are
capitalised until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs
are suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted. All other bosrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.15 Employee henefits

The group contributes towards the state pension in accordance with local legislation. The only obligation of
the group is to make the required contributions. Costs are expensed in the period in which they ate incurred.

4.16 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign cutrency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective group entity using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions {spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the sertlement of such transacdons and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at vear-end exchange rates are recognised in the profic or loss.

Non-monetary items are not retransiated at the vear-end and are measured at historical cost {translated using
the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non monetary items measured at fair value which are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

In the group's financial statements, ail assets, liabilities and transactions of group entities with a functional
currency other than the Euro ate translated into Euto upon consolidation. ‘The functional currency of the
entitics in the group has remained unchanged during the reporting period.

4.17 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is tecognised if it is probable that the expected futare economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the company and the cost of the assct can be measured rcliably.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost, being the fair value at the acquisition date for intangible assets
acquired in a business combination. Iixpenditure on an intangible asset is recognised as an expense in the
period when it is incurred unless it forms part of the cost of the asset that mects the recognition criteria or
the item is acquired in a business combination and cannot be recognised as an intangible asset, in which case
it forms part of goodwill at the acquisition: date.




The useful life of intangible asscts is asscssed to determine whether it is finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with a finite useful life are amordsed. Amortisation is charged to profit or loss 50 as to write off the cost of
intangible assets less any estimated residual value, over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation method
applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of cach
reporting period,

Intangible asscts are derccognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their
use of disposal. Gains or losses afsing from derecognition represent the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrving amount, and are included i profit ot loss in the period of derecognition.

Patents and trademarks

Parents and trademarks are classified as intangible assets. After initial recognition, patents and trademarks are
cartied at cost less any accumulated amortisation z2nd any accumulated impairment losses. Patents and
trademarks are amortised on a straight-linc basis over ten vears.

internally developed software

Expenditure on the research phase of projects to develop new customised software is recognised as an
expense as incurred.

Costs that are directly attributable to a project’s development phasc are recognised as intangible assets,
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:

* the development costs can be measuted reliably

* the project is technically and commercially feasible

* the group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project
» the group has the ability to use or sell the software

* the software will generate probable future economic benefits.

Development costs not meeting these criteria for capitalisation are expensed as incurred.

Directly ateributable costs include employee costs incurred on software development along with an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads and borrowing costs,

Al finite-lived intangible assets, including capitalised internally developed software, ate accounted for using
the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated uscful
lives, Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at cach reporting date. In addition, they are subject to
impairment testing as described in note 4.21. The following useful lives are applied:

Years
Software 3
Patents and tfrademarks 7-10

Any capitalised internally developed software that is not ver complete is not amortised but is subject to
impairment testing as described in note 4.21.

Amortisation Is included within depreciation, amortisaton and impairment of non-financial assets.

Subsequent expenditures on the maintenance of computer software and brand names are expensed as
incurred.
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4.18 Plant and equipment

The group’s plant and equipment are classified into the tollowing classes — motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures
and fittings and office and computer equipment.

Plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Subscquent costs are included in the asset’s carrving
amount when it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. [ixpenditure on repairs and maintenance of plant and
equipment is recognised as an expense when incurred.

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition represent the difference berween the net
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount, and are included in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the depreciable asscts are available for use and is charged to profit or loss so
as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over its estimated uscful lives, using the straight-linc
method, on the following bases:

Years
Motor vehicles 20
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 10
Office and computer equipment 2033

The depreciation method applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

4.19 Right-of-use asseis

in the casc of right-of-usc assets, expected useful lives are determined by reference to comparable owned
asscts or the lease term, if shorter. Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life arc updated as
required, but at least annually. For leases on buildings, the right-of-use assets are being amortised over the
lease term.




4.20 Leases

Accounting policy applicable from 1 January 2019

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019, the group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as a contrace, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
(the undetlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the group
assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

* the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicidy identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identdfied ar the time the asset is made availabie to the group

* the group has the right to obtain substantiaily alf of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract

* the group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughour the period of use. The group
assess whether it has the right to direct *how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the petiod of
use.

Measurement and recognition of leases

At lease commencement date, the group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the smtement
of financial position. The right-of-use assct is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and
remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease pavments made in advance of the lease
commerncement date (act of any inceatives received).

The group depreciates the right-of-usc asscts on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to
the eatlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset ot the end of the lease term. The group also
assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators cxist.

At the commencement date, the group measures the iease lability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
group’s incremental borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease hability are made up of fixed payments.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest.
It is remcasured to reflect any reasscssment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
in the profit ot loss if the tight-of-use asset is already teduced to zero.

On the statement of financial position, the group has opted to disclose right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
as separate financial staternent line items.

Accounting policy applicable before 1 January 2019
Operating leases
Operating leases are those leases where a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are

effectively retained by the lessor.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of profic or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, whete the lessee does not bear
substantially all of the risks and rewatds of ownership associated with the asset. Associated costs, such as
maintenance and Insurance, arc expensed 1as incurred.




Finance leases

Management applies judgment in consideting the substance of a lease agreement and whether it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownesship of the leased assct. Key factors considered
include the length of the lease term in relation to the economic life of the asset, the present value of the
minimum lease payments in telation to the assets value and whether the group obtains ownership of the asset
at the end of the lease term.

Finance leases are classified at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present
value of minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance lease charges, are
included in other short-term and long-term trade and other pavables. Fach lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period
50 as to produce a constant petiodic rate of interest on the temaining balance of the liability for each period.

The group did not have any assets under finance lease for the prior period ended 31 December 2018 and in
prior yeats.

4.21 Impairment testing of intangible assets and plant and equipment

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

All other individuat assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumsrances indicate that the catrying amount may not be recoverable.

Arn impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assct’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. To determine the value in use, the group’s management estimates expected future
cash flows from each cash-generadng unit and determines a suicable interest rate in order to caleulate the
present value of those cash flows. Discount factors arc determined individually for cach cash-generating unit
and reflect their respective risk profiles as assessed by the group’s management.

Impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Impairment losses for cash-generating units
asc charged pro rata to the asscts in the cash-gencrating unit. All asscts arc subscquently reassessed for
indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge that
has been recognised is reversed if the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
cartying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

4.22 Financial instruments
Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group and the company become 2 party to

the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial assetr and substandally all the risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is
derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.




Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Fixcept for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measuted at
the transaction price in accordance with IFRS 13, all financial asscts arc initially measured at fair value
adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable).

Tinancial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the
following categories:

* amortised cost
* fair value through profit or loss (FV1PL)
« fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

In the periods preseated the group and the company do not have any financial asscts categorised as I'VTPL
and FYOCI.

The classification is determined by both:

* the entiny’s business modcl for managing the financial asset
* the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets thar are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs ot finance income, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within
administrative expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and
ate not designated as TVTPL):

* they are held within a business model whosce objective is to hold the financial asscts and collect
its contractual cash flows

» the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
ptincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Discounting is omitted where the etfect of discountng is immarerial. The group’s cash and cash equivalents,
loans and receivables, contract assets and rrade and most other receivables fall into this category of financial
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than *hold to collect” or ‘hold to collect
and sell’ are categorised at fair value through profit and loss. Further, irrespective of business model financial
assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at
FVTPL. All derivative financial instruments fall into this category, except for those designated and effective
as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requitements apply.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losscs recognised in profit or loss. The fair
values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a

valuation technique where no active market exists.

As already indicated above, the group held no financial assets at fair value through ptofit or loss.




Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI}
Financial assets at TVOCT are classified accordingly if the assers meet che following conditons:

* they are held under a business model whose objective it is “hold to colleet” the associated cash
flows and sell, and

* the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Any gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) will be recycled upon derecognition of
the asset,

As already indicated above, the group held no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9's impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognise expected credit losses
— the ‘expected credit loss (IZCL) model’. This replaced IAS 39’s ‘incurred loss model’. Inscruments within the
scope of the new requirements included loans and other debt-type financial assets measured at amortsed cost
and FVOCI (the group had no debt-type financial assets at FVOCI), trade receivables, contract assets
recognised and measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments and some financial guarantee contracts (for
the issuer) that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (the group had no financial guarantee
contracts).

Recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the group first identfying a credit loss event. Instead
the group considers a broader range of information when assessing credir risk and measuring expected credit
losses, including past events, current conditions, teasonable and supporeable forecasts that affect the expected
coilectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made betweer:

* financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (Stage 17) and

« financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognidon
and whose credit tisk is not low {‘Stage 27).

Stage 3’ would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the repotting date.

“12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit losses’
are recognised for the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Trade and other receivables and contract assets

The group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables as well as
contract assces and records the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit losses, These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potendal for default at anv point during the life of the
financial instrument. In calculating, the group uses its historical experience, external indicators and forward-
looking information to caiculate the expected credit losses using a provision matrix.




The group assess impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they posscss shared credit risk
characteristics they have been grouped based on the days past due. Refer to note 42.2 for a detailed analysis
of how the impairment requitements of ITRS 9 are applied.

Classification and measurement of financial labilities

The group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings, lease liabilities and trade and other payables and
other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the group designates a financial Hability at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective incerest method excepr
for derivatives and financial liabilities designated at FVIPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss (ather than derivative financial instruments that are designated and

effective as hedging instruments). The group does not hold detivatives and financial liabilities designated at
FVIPL.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrament’s fair value that are reported in profic
or loss are included within finance costs or finance incotne.

4.23 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first in first out
method and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comptises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads based on the normal level of activity. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completon and the costs to be
incurred in marketing, seiling and distribution.

4.24 Income taxes

Current and deferred tas is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other
comprehensive income or in equity, as appropriate.

Current tax is based on the taxable result for the period. The raxable result for the petiod differs from the
result as teported in profit or loss because it excludes items which are non-assessable or disallowed and it
further cxcludes items that are taxable or deductible in other periods. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting petiod.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences
arising from diffetences berween the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets,
including deferred tax assets for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference atises from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
inidal recognirion {other than in a business combination) of other assets and labilities in a transaction that
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.




Deferred tax liabilitics arc not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries/associates/interests in joint arrangements where the company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the tempotaty difference will not reverse in the
forcseeable future. Deferred tax assets arc recognised for deductible temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries/associates/interests in joint arrangements where it is probable that raxable profit
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised and it is probable thar the temporary
difference will reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred ax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the
asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rares that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the end of the
reporting period,

Current tax assets and liabilitics are offset when the group has a legally enforceabie right to set off the
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to tealise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the group entities have a legally enforceable right to set off
its current tax assets and abilitics and the deferred rax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same raxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entides which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net hasis, or to realise the assets and settle the labilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets ate
expected to be settled or recovered.

4.25 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integrai part of the group’s cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and are presented as bank borrowings in
current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

4.26 Equity
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Retained earnings include current period results as disclosed in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income less dividend distributions.

Dividend distributions pavable to equity shareholders are included with short-term financial Liabilites when
the dividends are approved in general meeting priot to the end of the reporting period.

4.27 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for legal disputes, onerous contracts or other claims are recognised when the group and the
company have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past eveng, it is probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required from the group and the company and amounts can be
estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow tmay still be uncertain,

Restructuring provisions arc recognised only if a derailed formal plan for the restructuring has been
developed and implemented, or management has at least announced the plan’s main features to those
aftected by it. Provisions are not recognised for futute operating losses.
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Provisions arc measured at the estimated expenditure requitred to scttle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation, Whete thete are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in scttiement is determined by considering the class of obligations as 2 whole. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Any reimbursement that the group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect o the
obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related
Provision.

In those cases where the possible outflow of cconomic resources as a result of present obligations is
considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognised.

4.28 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and
estimation uncertainty

When preparing the financial statements management undertakes a number of judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Significant management judgements

The foliowing are the judgements made by management in applying the accounting policies of the group
that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Recognition of service and contract revenues

As revenue from aftet-sales maintenance agreements and consulting and development of systems contracts
is recognised over time, the amount of revenue recognised in a reporting period depends on the extent to
which the performance obligation has been satisfied. For after-sales maintenance agreements chis requires
an estimate of the quantiry of the services to be provided, based on historical experience with similar
contracts. In a similar way, rccognising revenue for consulting and development of systems contracts also
requires significant judgment in determining the estimated number of hours required to complete the
promised work when applying the hours-to-hours method described in note 4.11. Management however
considers that any variance in estimates on ongoing contracts would be insignificant to the group.

Capitalisation of internaily developed software

Distinguishing the research and development phases of a new customised software project and determining
whether the recognidon tequirements for the capitalisation of development costs are met requires
judgement. After capitalisation, management monitors whether the recognition requitements continue to be
met and whether there are any indicators that capitalised costs may be impaired (see note 4.17).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that
futare taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss
carty-forwards can be utilised. Tn addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any
legal or economic Hmits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions (see note 4.24).

Estimation uncertainty
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and

measurement of assets, labilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may be
substantally different.




Impairment of intangible assets including goodwill and tangible assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating unit's carrying
amount cxceeds its recoverable amount. To determine the recoverable amount, management estimares
expected future cash flows from cach cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows (see note 4.21). In the process of measuring expected future
cash flows managemernt makes assumptions about future operating results. These assumptions relate to
future events and circumstances. The actual results may vary, and may cause significant adjustments to the
group's assets within the next financial year.

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to
market risk and the appropuiate adjustment to assee-specific tisk factors.

The group tests goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful life annually for impairment or more
frequently if there arc indications that goodwill or intangibles might be impaired. Determining whether the
carrying amounts of these assets can be realised requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash generating units. The value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate the futute cash flows
expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value.

Goodwill arising on a business combination is ailocated, to the cash-generating units “CGUs™) that are
expected to benefit from that business combinadon.

At 31 December 2019, goodwill was allocated as follows:

e € 3,357,248 (2018: € 3,357,248) to APCO Systems Limited which operates the electronic payment
gateway.

e € 2,671,762 (2018: € 2,671,762) to APCO Limited which operates in the business of sclling and
maintenance of 1T solutions and security systems,

* €1.464,477 (2018: € 1,464,477} to PTL Limired business.

CGU — Pavment Processing Services

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined from the value in use calculation. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs during the petiod. The directors estimate discount tates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current marlket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in sclling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the market,

The assessment of recoverability of the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful life includes:

 forecasted cash flow projections for the next three years and projection of terminal value using the
perpetuity method;

¢ growth rates to perpetuity of 0.26%; and

e use of 14.5% (pre-tax) (2018: 17.2%) to discount the projected cash flows o net present values

Based on the above assessment, the directors expect the carrving amount of goodwill and intangible assets
with an indefinite useful life to be recoverable.




CGU - IT Solutions and Security Systems

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined from the value in use calculation. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs during the period. The directors estimate discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the market,

The assessment of recoverability of the carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful life includes:

¢ forccasted cash flow projections for the next three vears and projection of terminal value using  the
perpemity method,

e orowth rates to perpetuity of 0.26%; and

® use of 13.9% - 17.1% (pre-tax) (2018: 13.2% - 17.1%) to discount the projected cash fiows to net
present values

Based on the above assessment, the directors expect the carryving amount of goodwill and intangible assets
with an indefinite useful life to be recoverable.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected
atility of the assets to the group. Acuual results, however, may vary due to technical obsolescence.

Inventories

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventotics may be affected by
furare technology or other market-driven changes that may redace future selling prices.

Business combinations

Management uses valuation techniques when determining the fair values of certain assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination (scc note 4.4).




5 Segment reporting

The group operates two business activities which are the sale of payment processing services and the
provision of I'T solutions and security systems. Each of these operating segments is managed separately as
each of these lincs requires local resources. All inter segment transfers for management scrvices are carried
out on a cost basis.

The accounting policy for identifying segments is based on internal management reporting information that is
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.

Revenue reported below represents revenue generated from external customers. There were no intersegment
sales in the year. The group's reportable segments under ITRS 8 are direct sales attributable to each line of

business.

The sale of payment processing services and the provision of IT solutions and security systems are derived
from Malta, EU and non-EU countries.

In 2019 and 2018, the group did not have any clients which individually represented 10% or more of the total
revenue of the group.

As at the end of the reporting period the total amount of intangible assets (including goodwilly and plant and
equipment amounted to € 8,709,410 (2018: € 8,743,390) and € 248,224 (2018: € 292,548) respectively.

Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Segment profit represents the profit carned by each segment after allocation of central administration costs
and finance costs bascd on services and finance provided. This is the measure reported to the chief operating

decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

‘T'he accounting policies of the teportable segments are the same as the group's accounting policies described
in note 4.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities to consolidated rotals are
reported below:

Profit and loss before tax

2019 2018
€ €
Total profit for reportable segments 3,695,556 1,502,896

Unallocated amounts:
Other unallocated amounts (659,440) {574,251)
3,036,116 928,645




Assets

Total assets for reporiabie segments
Elimination of receivables

Unallocated amounts:

Plant and eguipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Other investments

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Deferred tax

Current tax asset

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Elimination of liabilities

Unallocated amounts:
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities

2019 2018

€ €
13,068,457 12,227 274
(1,714,760) {4,149,052)
176 1,786
7,493,485 7,493,485

- 6,208

50,000 50,000
1,284,589 3,445,726
52,830 8,319
236,709 242,704
106,569 13,284
403,424 330,399
20,981,479 19,670,223
2019 2018

€ €
10,550,425 10,610,173
(1,714,760) {4,149,052)
71,077 145,429
1,721,321 3,848,761
10,628,063 10,455,311
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6 Revenue

Revenue represents the amount receivable for goods sold and services rendered during the period from
continuing opcrations, net of any indircet taxes as follows:

The group The group The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ € € €

Sale of goods 6,164,804 6,829,845 - -
Consulting services and development 1,754,962 1,918,976 - -
Maintenance, suppott and servicing 3,198,077 2.947.712 - -
Payment gateway services 4,641,454 3,872,166 - -
Other revenue 290,075 - - -
Management fees - - 352,703 443,492
16,049,372 15,568,699 352,703 443,492

As disclosed in note 5, the tevenue of the group is derived from Malta, EU and non-EU countries. During
2019 and 2018, revenue was predominantly generated in Malta, During 2019, included in payment gateway
services is an amount of € 3,396,780 derived from FU countiies (excluding Malta) and tepresents 22% of the
group’s total tevenue (2018: € 1,701,134; 11%). Revenue from non-EU countries amounted to approximately
4% of total group revenue (2018: 3%). The group did not have any revenue exceeding 10% in any one
country outside Malta. This is based on the contractual agreements with clients.

Assets related to contracts with customers include amounts that the group expects to receive from
performance obligations that have been satisfied before it receives the consideration and has not invoiced
such amounts by the end of the year.

The following are the amounts recognised as contract assets at the end of the reporting periods presented:

The group The group

2019 2018

€ €

Contract assets relating to rendering of services and development 129,135 659,727
Contract assets relating to maintenance, support and servicing - 58,552
Contract assets relating to commission income accrued on gateway 86,863 186,779
215,998 905,058

Contract assets have decreased since the group still had a number of significant projects that had not yer been
billed for performance obligations that have been satisfied by the end of 2018. A number of these projects
have been completed during the current financial vear. The group does not expect any loss allowances from
such amounts, as these are due from customers with no history of losses and which are considered of good
credit quality. The assessment of credit losses on balances at 31 December 2019 did not result in any material
amount and considered by management to be insignificant.

Unsatisfied long-term performance obligations

The following aggregated amounts of transaction prices relate to the performance obligations from existing
contracts that are unsatisfied ot partially unsatisfied as at 31 December 2019:

2020 2021 2022 Later

€ € € €

Sale of goods 4,638,714 599,656 - -
Consulting services and development 657,858 - - -
Maintenance and servicing 1,240,013 1,123,281 1,263,833 2,657,617

Total revenue expected to be recognised 6,536,585 1,722,937 1,263,833 2,657,617




The following aggregated amounts of transaction prices relate to the performance obligations from existing

contracts that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as at 31 December 2018:

2020

2019 2021 Later

€ € € €

Maintenance and servicing 751,068 754,674 575,102 53,733
Total revenue expected to be recognised 751,068 754,674 575,102 53,733

Revenue from the sale of goods amounting to € 4,638,714 in 2020 and € 599,656 in 2021 along with revenue
generated from consulting services and development amounting to € 657,858 in 2020 pertains to revenue
estimated to be recognised from a major overseas technoiogy implementation project inidated at the end of
the current year and carried out in collaboration with IBM. No revenuc has been recognised on this project
as it is still in its early phascs. The corresponding inventories on this contract has been disclosed as contract
inventories in note 26. The tevenue from maintenance and setvicing expected to be recognised from 2020
onwards inciudes revenue from normal local operations on maintenance contracts and as from 2021 onwards

also on overseas maintenance CoOntracts,

7 Other operating income

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Other operating income 38,119 17,620 2,336 -
38,119 17,620 2,336 -

8 Investment income
The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Dividends from subsidiaries - - 2,579,591 2,218,290
- - 2,579,591 2,218,290

9 Finance income

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Other Income 182 - - -
Interest income from subsidiaries - - 60,906 -
interest income from other related parties 13,969 12,776 - -
Interest income from immediate parent 6,493 - 4,275 -
interest income on loans receivable - - - 35,259
20,644 12,776 65,181 35,259




10 Finance costs

GQ

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ € € €
Interest on bank overdraft 32,692 26,438 - -
Interest expense for leasing arrangements 81,425 - - -
interest payable to subsidiaries - - 24,106 -
Interest payable to immediate parent 26,412 - 20,087 -
Interest payable to other related parties 10,593 25,105 - -
151,122 51,543 44,193 -
11 Profit before tax

The profit before tax is stated after charging/ (crediting):
The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Depreciation and amortisation (notes 18 and 19) 378,879 387,958 7,908 13,271
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (note 20) 310,844 - - -
Auditor's remuneration 33,330 25,508 15,000 7.200
Reversal of loss allowance {note 42.2) {306,496} - - -
Loss allowance recognised (note 42.2) 48,525 131,650 - -
Provision for inventories {note 26) 84,856 (15,807} - -
Inventories written-off (note 26) 35,041 19,839 - -
Net exchange differences (62,259) {27,039) - -

Total remuneration payable to the parent company’s auditors in respect of the audit of the financial
statements and the undertakings included in the consolidated financial statements amounted to € 15,000
(2018: € 7,200) and the remuneration payable in respect of the audits of the undertakings included in the
consolidated financial statements amounted to € 33,300 (2018: € 25,508). Other fees pavable to the parent
company’s auditors for non-aadit services, namely tax services, amounted to € 6,720 (2018: € 8,380).




12 Key management personnel compensation

Directors’ compensation
Short ferm benefits:
Fees

Directors’ fees
Value of services provided by an officer of the
group

Other key management personnel
Short term benefits:
Salaries and social security contributions

Total key management personnel

compensation
Short term benefits

12.1

W

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

110,070 100,000 110,070 100,000

- 38,441 - 38,441

110,070 138,441 110,070 138,441
64,184 219,982 64,184 219,982
174,254 358,423 174,254 358,423

Recharges by immediate parent

On 24 October 2016 the immediate patent of the group entered into an agreement by virtue of which a
maximum of 10% of the issued sharcs in the company were granted to one senior officer of the coropany.
The option under this scheme vested immediately, The arrangement allowed the option holder to purchase
one ordinary share having a nominal value of €1.00 per share at a subscription price of €1.36 per share. The

options had to be exercised within 8 years from the vesting date.

Separately but related w the above, the option holder was also entitled to receive 14,705 ordinary shares per
annum, starting from 2016, for no consideration to the officer in question, for as long as he continued o
provide his services to the company. These shares were to be deducted from the share option entitlement
referred to above. Up to 31 December 2018 the cost of this agreement with the option holder was recharged
by the immediate parent to the company and included in administration expenses.

The option holder cxercised the option in October 2019 to acquire the remaining shares from the ultimate
parent, to increase his holding to 10% of the company’s equity and consequently, at the balance sheet date,
there were no further agreements in force with the option holder.

The effect of the recharge made by the immediate parent described above, on the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and statements of financial position for the reporting periods presented are

as follows:

Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Administrative costs

Statements of financial position

Non-current assets
Payable to parent company

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

- 38,441 - 38,441

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

- (38,441) - (38,441)




13 Employee remuneration

Fixpenses recognised for staff costs are analysed below:

=E
5.4

The group The group The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

Wages and salaries 4,315,505 4,468,207 406,221 312,988
Social security costs 236,242 265,495 16,567 6,994
Maternity fund contributions 7,590 6,562 518 -
4,559,337 4,740,264 422,306 319,982

Capitalised wages (277,038) (96,273) - -
Recharges to group companies - - (73,820} -
4,282,299 4,643,991 348,486 318,982

The average number of persons employed during the year by the group excluding exceutive directors, was

made up of:

The group The group The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

No. No. No. No.

Operations 92 20 - -
Administration 23 36 5 4
115 126 5 4

During 2019, the group disposed of one of its subsidiaries as disclosed in note 22. This disposal contributed

to most of the decrease in the number of employees.
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14 Tax expense

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the
effective tax rate of the group and the company at 35% (2018: 35%) and the reported tax expensc in the
staternent of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:

The group The group The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

Profit before tax 3,036,116 928,645 1,689,948 1,346,653
Tax rate 35% 35% 35% 35%
Expected tax expense {1,062,641) (325,026) (591,482) {471,329)
Adjustment for adoption of IFRS 15 - 21,654 - -
Adjustment for other permanent difference (491) - - -
Adjustment for under provision tax in prior years (11,176) - - -
Adjustment for prior year deferred tax 479 - - -
Income not chargeable to tax 129,202 67,393 - 85,611
Adjustment for disallowable expenses (837} (114,202) {837} {113,283)
Other paermanent differences {1,880) 2,212 (2,197) 2,204
Actual tax expense, net (947,344) (347,969) {594,516) {496,797)

Comprising:

Current tax expense {887,395} (381,205) (687,801} (502,421)
Deferred tax (expense) / credit {59,949} 33,236 93,285 5,624
(947,344) {347,969) (594,516) (496,797)

Refer to note 36 for information on the deferred tax movements of the group and the company.

15 Dividends

A net interim dividend of € 950,000 (€0.08 per shate based on the number of shares befote the re-
denomination of the shares as disclosed in note 30) was paid in 2019 (2018: € 750,000 (€ (.07 per share)).

On 24 April 2020, the directors proposed a further net dividend of € 410,051, equivalent to € (.018 per share
(calculated on the number of shares following the share re-denomination). This, together with the interim
dividend paid during the vear, will be put forward for approval ar the Company's next Annual General
Meeting.

16 Earnings per share

The earnings per share have been calculated using the profit after tax attributable to shareholders as the
numerator, No adjustments to profit were necessary during the current and preceeding accounting periods, In
addition, there are no other instraments which could give rise to potential ordinary shares and to a dilutive
effect and therefore, only the basic earnings per share has been presented.

The weighted average namber of shares for the period has been computed as the total number of shares at the
end of the current year following the re-denomination of the shares as disclosed in notes 2 and 30. The
earnings per share has been calculated for both years using the revised number of shares after the re-
denomination as if such re-denomination had already occurred on 1 January 2018, as follows:

The group The group

2019 2018
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 2,088,772 580,676
Weighted average number of shares in issue (comparative number restated) 22,780,636 22,780,636

Earnings per share (in cents) 9.17¢ 2.55¢




17 Goodwill

The movements in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:

At 1 January 2018
At 31 December 2018

At 1 January 2019
At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018
At 31 December 2019

Amounts recognised as goodwill were based on predecessor accounting principles.

18 Intangible assets

The group

Gross carrying amount
Af 1 January 2018
Additions

At 31 December 2018

Gross carrying amount

At 1 January 2019

Additions

Disposal upon sale of subsidiary
At 31 December 2018

Amortisation

At 1 January 2018
Provision for the year
At 31 December 2018

At 1 January 2019

Provision for the year

Released upon sale of subsidiary
At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018
At 31 December 2019

The amortisation charge was included in administrative expenses.

The group

€

7,493,487

7,493,487

7,493,487

7,493,487

7,493,487
7,493,487

Total.
€

1,563,074
398,018

1,961,093

1,961,003
317,455
(104,903)

2,173,645

425,601
285,591
711,192

711,192
281,384

(34.854)

957,722

1,249,903
1,215,923

Intangible assets include separately identified intangible assets acquired during 2014 as part of the business

combinations,




These intangible assets of the group relate to APCO’s payment gateway system amounting to € 1,000,000,
The uscful life of this assct was considered to be finite due to possible technological obsolescence and is
being amortised on a straight line basis. Until 31 December 2014, the group was amortising the intangible
asset over 3 vears. Following the knowledge generated, the group re-assessed the remaining useful life of the
asset to be 10 years. Had the group not re-assessed the temaining useful life, the additional amortisation for
the vears 2015, 2016 and 2017 would have amounted to € 233,000 annually more. This asset would have been
fully amortised by 31 December 2017 had the group not re-assessed the remaining useful life. As from 2018,
the vearly amortisation on this asset amounts to € 89,855. The amortisation charge for the year is included
within administrative expenses.

Intangible assets

Software
The company €
Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2018 29,385
At 31 December 2018 29,385
At 1 January 2019 29,385
At 31 December 2019 29,385
Amortisation
At 1 January 2018 13,294
Provision for the year 9,783
At 31 December 2018 23,087
At 1 January 2019 23,087
Provision for the year 6,298
At 31 December 2019 29,385

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018 6,298
At 31 December 2019 ' T

The amortisation charge was included in administrative expenses.

The company’s intangible assets comptises software generated by one of the subsidiaries of the group and
sold to the company.
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Plant and equipment

The following are the plant and equipment of the company:

Total
The company €
Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2018 10,938
Additions 532
At 31 December 2018 11,470
At 1 January 2019 11,470
Additions -
At 31 December 2019 11,470
Amortisation
At 1 January 2018 6,206
Provision for the year 3,478
At 31 December 2018 9,684
At 1 January 2019 9,684
Provision for the year 1,610
At 31 December 2019 11,294
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2018 1,786
At 31 December 2019 176

The depreciation charge was ineluded in administrative expenses.




20 Right-of-use assets

The following assets have been recognised as right-of-use assets of the group:

Motor

Buildings vehicles Total
The group € € €
Gross carrying amount
Adjustment on transition to IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 1,870,349 346,481 2,216,830
Additions - 76,633 76,633
At 31 December 20619 1,870,349 423,114 2,293,463
Depreciation
Provision for the year 224,738 86,1086 310,844
At 31 December 2019 224,738 86,106 310,844
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 1,645,611 337,008 1,882,619

The depreciation charge on right-of-use assets was included in administrative expenses.

The group has elected to disclose right-of-use assets separately in these financial statements. The information
pertaining to the gross carrying amount, depreciation recognised during the vear and other movements in
right-of-use assets is included in the above table. Information pertaining to lease liabilites and their
corresponding matusities aze disclosed separately in note 21, Information about the transition to IFRS 16 and
the respective accounting policy for the measurement and recognition of leases are disclased in notes 3.1 and
4.20 respectively.

On transition to IFRS 16, the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities was
3.93%. The transition date was 1 January 2019. At this date, the group has elected to measure the right-of-use
asscts at an armount equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid ot accrued lease payments that existed
at the date of transition. All additions to right-of-use assets during the current reporting period have been
recognised using the same ratc of 3.93% as there were no changes in the such rate on the date when the new
leases came into effect. The incremental borrowing rate will be re-assessed every time a new lease is entered
into by the group and the corresponding sight-of-use asset recognised, New leases are assessed on a case-by-
case basis.

On transition to IFFRS 16, the group has applied a single discount rate to its leases on buildings as these have
reasonably similar characteristics. These comprise maialy of the company’s office space and car park leasc.
The group has also applied the same discount rate on motor vehicles on 1 January 2019 as the effect of
applying different discount rates on a case-by-case basis would be insignificant.
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21 Leases - The group

Lease liahilities are presented in the statement of tinancial positdon as follows:

2019
€
Current:
Lease liability 283,892
Non-current:
Lease Hability 1,722,647
2,006,539

The group has leases for its buildings and motor vehicles. Each lease is included in the statement of financiai
position as a right-of-use asset and a lcasc liability. The group does not have any other short-term leases
{leases with an effected term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value underlying assets and variable
lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate (such as lease payments based on a percentage of
group sales). The group classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its plant and equipment as

applicable.

ach lease generally imposes a reseriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the group to sublet the
asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the group. Leases are either non-cancellable
or may only be cancelled by incurring 2 substantive termination fee, The group is prohibited from selling or
pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings the group must keep those
properties in a good state of repait and return the propertics in their original condition at the end of the
lease. Further, the group must insure items under lease and incur maintenance fees on such items in
accordance with the lease contracts.

The range of the remaining lease term of the group’s buildings is 4 - 10 years, whilst the range of the
remaining lease teom of the motor vehicles is 1- 5 years.

The lease liabilities are secared by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments at
31 Decembet 2019 wete as follows:

Minimum lease payments
Later than one year

Not later than one but not later than Later than
Year five years five years Total
€ € € €
31 December 2019
Lease payments 357,365 1,127,266 857,814 2,342,445
Finance charges {73,473) {193,507) (68,926) (335,906)
Net present values 283,892 833,759 788,888 2,006,539

The group did not have any leases classified as finance leases during the previous reporting period and
therefore 2 comparative information table is not applicable.
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Investment in subsidiaries

22.1 The company

2019 2018

€ €

Al 1 January 11,184,871 11,122,921
Transfer of investment in joint venture - 63,149
Transfer of investment to a company within the group (63,149) (1,199}
Disposal of investment (1,8989) -
At 31 December 11,119,723 11,184,871

On 21 May 2019, the company sold all of its investment in Eunoia Limited to third parties outside the

group. As a result, Funoia Limited ceased to be a subsidiary of the group as at that date.

During the vear, the investment in Poang Limited was transferred to APCQO Systems Limited, another
subsidiary within the group. Subsequently, during November 2019, Poang Limited merged with APCO

Systems Limited.
During 2018, Stride Technology Limited was merged with P'I'L Limited.

Hatvest Technology p.l.c. has investments in the following subsidiarics:

Place of Proportion ownership Portion voting power

Name of subsidiary incorporation interest Helding held

2019 2018 2019 2018

% % % %

PTL Limited Malta 99.99 99.99 Direct 100 100
APCO Limited Malta 99.69 99.99 Direct 100 100
APCO Systemns Limited Malta 99.09 99.99 Direct 100 100
ipsyon Ltd Malta 99.99 98.99 Direct 100 100
Eunoia Ltd Malta - 99.99 Direct - 100
Poang Limited {merged
with APCO Systems
Limited) Malta - 100 Direct - 100

Principal
activity

Sale of IT
solutions and
securily systems

Sale of IT
solutions and
security systems

Sale of IT
sclutions and
security systems

Holding of
intellectual
property

Sale of software

Software
development




Information about dircct subsidiaries of the company is as follows:

Capital and reserves at 31 Profit/(loss) for the year

Name of company Registered office December ended 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €

Ninetgen Twenty Three,
Valletta Road, Marsa, MRS
PTL Limited 3000 Maka 666,058 H44 534 236,523 226,667

Nineteen Twenty Three,
Valletta Road, Marsa, MRS
APCO Limited 3000 Malta 123,129 65,873 157,256 101,283

Nineteen Twenty Three,
Vallefta Road, Marsa, MRS

APCO Systems Limited 3000 Malta 1,493,285 1,147,104 1,436,181 750,872

Nineteen Twenty Three,
Valletta Road, Marsa, MRS
Ipsyon Limited 3000 Malta 235,560 18,825 588,735 295,294

Nineteen Twenty Three,
Valletta Road, Marsa, MRS

Eunoia Limited 3000 Malta N/A (204,538) N/A (113,289)
Poang Limited Limited Nineteen Twenty Three,
(merged with APCO Systemns Valletta Road, Marsa, MRS
Limited) 3000 Malta N/A 45,303 N/A {166,688)

23 Investments accounted for using the equity method

23.1 Investment in joint ventures
The group The group The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

At 1 January - 305,398 - 470,484
Impairment of investment in joint ventures - - - (407,335)
Transfer to investment in subsidiaries - (305,396) - {63,149)
At 31 December - . - -

The group has investrent in joint ventures as follows:

Proportion of ownership Capital and reserves at 31 Profiti{loss) for the year

Name of company interest December ended 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
% % € € € €

Hili Salomone Company
Limited 50 50 (3,200) {3,200} - -

The registered office of Hili Salomone Company Limited is Nincteen Twentv-Three, Valletta Road, Marsa,
Malta,

During 2018, the mvestment in Hili Salomone Company Limited amounting to € 70,484 was impaired in full.
The loss on such investment was borne by the immediate parent company of the group during 2017.




During 2018, Harvest Technology p.l.c. acquired the remaining 30% of the share capital of Poang Limited.
As a result, the latter became a fully owned subsidiary of Ilatvest Technology p.l.c. and the corresponding

investment was transferred to investment in subsidiaries.

24 Other investment

e

The group The group The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

As at 1 January and 31 December 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

During 2017, an investment of € 50,000 has been made in Thought3D Ltd through Harvest Technology

le., corresponding to 4% of this investment’s share capital.
P 2 P

25 Loans and receivables

The group The group The company  The company
2019 2m8 2019 2018
€ € € €
Loans receivable from ultimate parent - 377,504 - 377,504
l_oans receivable from parent company - 686,498 - 674,321
Loans receivable from subsidiaries - - 1,309,422 150,000
- 1,064,002 1,399,422 1,201,825

Comprising:

Non-current
Loans receivabie from ultimate parent - 377,504 - 377,504
L oans receivable from parent company - 656,498 - 674,321
Loans receivable from subsidiaries - - 450,000 150,000
- 1,064,002 450,000 1,201,825

Current

Laans receivable from subsidiaries - - 949,422 -
- - 949,422 -

Toans issucd to subsidiarics, parent and ultimate parent bear an interest of 4.5% per annum (2018: 4.5% per
annum). Though these loans have no fixed date for repayment, they arc not cxpected to be realized within 12

months of the end of the reporting yeat,

26 Inventories

The group The group  The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

Spare parts, computers and other equipment 993,162 880,975 - -
Provision on spare parts, computer and

other equipment {226,318) (141,462) - -

Contract in progress 1,652,606 - - -

2,419,450 739,513 - -

T'he amount of inventories recognised as an expense duaring the vear amounted to €4,907,080 (2018:

€5,503,473).
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Write-off of inventories recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during
the year amounted to € 35,041 (2018: € 19,839) and are included with cost of sales.

The increase in the provision for losses on inventories of spare parts and other equipment for the year
amounted to € 84,856 (2018 decrease of € 15,807).

27 Other assets

The group The group The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

Assets recognised from costs to fulfif contracts - 197,698 - -
Prepayments 109,219 106,728 8,557 1,685
109,219 304,426 8,557 1,685

The group has recognised assets in relation to costs incurred in its rendering of services and maintenance and
support that is used to fulfil these contracts. The asset is amortised over the term of the specific contract it
relates to, consistent with the pattern of recognition of the associated revenue, Management expects the costs
to be completely recovered in the next 12 months.

28 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consist of the following:

The group The group The company  The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

Trade receivables — gross 4,508,353 4,362,311 - -
Allowance for expected credit losses {(269,158) (527,129) - -
Trade receivables — net 4,239,195 3,835,182 - -
Amounts owed by parent company 654 1,080,629 - 117,534
Amounts owed by subsidiaries - - - 1,798,771
Other receivables 86,334 62,673 39,470 -
Amounts owed by other related parties 52,218 826,902 - 442 916
Accrued income - 4,145 - -
Financial assets 4,378,402 5,818,531 39,470 2,359,221
Other receivables 15,815 107,535 13,359 41,699
Trade and other receivables — current 4,394,217 5,927,066 52,829 2,400,920

"The carrying value of financial assets is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value,
No interest is charged on trade and other receivables.

Amounts owed by ultimate parent, subsidiaries and other related patties are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

Note 42.2 includes disclosures relating to the credit risk exposures and analysis relating to the allowance for
expected credit losses.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include the following component:

g
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The group The group  The company The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

Cash and bank balances 2,133,336 900,007 236,709 242,704
Cash and cash equivalents in the

statements of financial position 2,133,336 990,097 236,709 242,704

Bank overdrafts (303,908) (734,679) - -
Cash and cash equivalents in the

statements of cash flows 1,829,338 255,418 236,709 242,704

The eroup and the company did not have any restrictions on its cash at bank as at the end of the reportin;
! pany 3 g
period. Any interest carned on cash at bank is based on market rates.

30 Share capital

"The share capital of Harvest Technology pJl.c. consists of ordinary shares with a par value of € 0.50 (2018: €
1). All shares ate equally eligible to receive dividends and repayment of capital and represent one vote at the
sharcholders” meceting of the company. During 2019, the nominal value of the authorised and issued share
capital of the company was re-denominated from a nominal value of € 1 per share to a nominal value of

€ 0.50 per sharc.

Shares issued and fully paid at 31 December

22,780,636 ordinary shares of € 0.50 each (2018: 11,390,318 ordinary shares of

€ 1 each)

Shares authorised at 31 December

70,000,000 ordinary shares of € 0.50 each (2018: 35,000,000 ordinary shares of

€1 each)

2019 2018

€ €
11,390,318 11,390,318
35,000,000 35,000,000
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31 Other equity

The group The group

2019 2018

€ €

Other equity 2,821,365 2,821,365

On 30 December 2013, Harvest Technology ple., acquired 100% interest in PTL Limited, 50% interest in

Hili Salomone Company Limited and 33% interest in Smart Technologies Limited from a related party, Hili
Company Limited. Both Hili Company Limited and 1923 Investments p.l.c. had the same parent company,

Hili Ventures Limited.

The acquisition of the subsidiary, PTL Limited, and its underlying subsidiarics by the company falls outside
the scope of International Financial Reporting Standard 3 — Business Combinations (“IFRS 37) because the
transaction merely represents a group reorganisation and because in terms of paragraph 2(c) of IFRS 3, the
acquisition of these entities by the company is a combination of businesses under common control in which
all the combining entities are uitimately controlled by the same party, Hili Ventures Limited, both before and
after the business combination and that control is not transitory.

'The difference of € 1,367,314 between consideration for the acquired entities of € 3,551,791 and the amounts
at which the asscts and liabilitics of the acquired entities were tecognised of € 2,184,477 are included in equity
in terms of predecessor accounting.

On 22 December 2016, Hagvest Technology p.lc. eliminated € 1,754,051 of its accumulated losses through a
reduction of its share premium account of the same amount. At consolidated level, this is included in equity.
During 2017, the € 1,754,051 reduction in share premium took effect and was eliminated against losses.

During 2017, the interest in Smart Technologics Limited was disposed of by the group and an amount of
€ 300,000 previously recognized in other equity was eliminated.




32 Bank bhorrowings
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The group The group The company  The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Bank overdrafts 303,998 734,679 - -
Bank loans 200,000 300,000 - -
503,998 1,034,679 - -
Comprising:
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 100,000 100,000 - -
100,000 100,000 - -
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts 303,998 734,679 - -
Bank loans 100,000 200,000 - -
403,998 934,679 - -

During 2018, the parent company of Harvest Technology p.l.c., 1923 Tnvestments p.l.c., advanced a total of
€ 600,000 to subsidiaties within the group to settle all outstanding loans with banking institutions. During
2018, the group also entered into a new loan amounting to € 300,000 to finance operations within the

Harvest Fechnology division.

The group has three overdtaft facilities in two of its subsidiarics. One of the overdrafts facilities bears interest
at 4.85% pet annum and is secured by a second general hypothec over the one of the subsidiaries’ assets. The
other overdraft facility available to the same subsidiary bears interest at 5.5% per annum and is unsecured.
The group has another baok overdraft in another subsidiary which bears intercst at 3.5% per annum and is
sccured by a first general hypothec over the assets of that subsidiary.

Bank overdrafts and foans are repayable as follows:

The group The group The company  The company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

On demand or within che year 403,998 934,679 - -
In the second year 100,000 100,000 - -
503,998 1,034,679 - .

The bank loan at 31 December 2019 bears interest of 3.5% per annum, is repayabie by quarterly instalmenrs
of € 25,000 and pavable in full by 31 December 2021, It is secured by a first gencral hypothec over the assets

of Ipsvon Limited and an assignment of royalties receivable.




33 Trade and other payables

The group The group The company  The company
2019 2018 2018 2018
€ £ € €
Trade payables 1,392,106 726,538 9,456 49,564
Amounits payable to related parties 5,196 53,467 - -
Cther payables 40,982 121,106 - 29,574
Accrued expenses 1,131,579 1,211,542 48,068 40,006
Financial liabilities 2,570,863 2,112,653 57,524 119,144
Other creditors 641,672 578,009 13,5563 26,285
Trade and other payables 3,212,435 2,690,662 71,077 145,429
Comprising:
Current payables
Trade and ather payables 3,212,435 2,690,662 71,077 145,429
3,212,435 2,690,662 71,077 145,429
The carrying values of financial liabilicies are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
No interest Is charged on trade and other payables.
34 Contract liabilities
The group The group
2019 2018
€ €
Deferred service income on rendering of services and development 858,607 85,161
Deferred service income on maintenance, support and servicing 1,449,310 1,369,088
Deferred service income on other gateway income and access fees 109,999 114,070
Deferred service income on licences 26,821 23,462
2,244,737 1,581,781

Deferred service income represent customer payments received or due In advance of performance {contract
liabilities) that are expected to be recognised as revenue in 2020, As described in note 4.11, maintenance,
servicing and support contracts are entered into for periods between 1 and 3 years. On the other hand,
consultancy and development of 1T systems are usually completed within 12 months, Nevertheless, the
company may occasionaily have projects for consultancy and development of I'T systems that span over more
than 12 months. Contracts for the latrer revenue source are however expected to be compieted within 2020,

The group also enters into transactions with pasties for the access to a payment gateway. The group’s revenue
is mainly derived from the actual volume of traffic on the payment gateway and on other fixed charges. Such
services are rendered and recognised in the same month when the income arises.

Deferred service income on licences is expected to be recognised as revenue in 2020.

The amounts recognised as a contract liability will generaliy be utilised within the next reporting period.
With the exception of an amount of € 338,430 in defetred service income on maintenance and support still
not yet recognised as revenue at 31 December 2019 and included with the balance at 31 December 2018, the

remaining deferred service income at the end of the previous reporting period was recognised as revenue
during the current vear. The corresponding amount of deferred service income on maintenance and support




still not vet recognised as revenue at 31 December 2018 and included with the balance at 31 December 2017

amounted to € 445 234,

35 Other financial liabilities

Amounts owed to parent company
Amounts owed to jointly controlled entities
Amounts owed to other related parties
Amounts owed to assoclates and JVs
Amounts owed to a shareholder

Comprising:
Non-current liabilities
Amounts owed to parent company

Current liabilities

Amounts owed to parent company
Amounts owed to jointly controfled entities
Amounts owed to other related parties
Amounts owed to associates and JVs
Amounts owed 1o a sharehoider

The group The group The company  The company
2019 2018 2018 2018

€ € € €
1,721,321 4,214,968 1,721,321 3,812,704
- 3,673 - 3,673

- 273,720 - 26,811

- - - 90

- 12,475 - 5,486
1,721,321 4,504,836 1,721,321 3,848,764
721,321 2,132,974 721,321 2,132,975
721,321 2,132,974 721,321 2,132,975
1,000,000 2,081,994 1,000,000 1,679,729
- 3,673 - 3.673

- 273,720 - 26,811

- - - 80

- 12,475 - 5,486
1,000,000 2,371,862 1,000,000 1,715,789

The rerms and conditions of amounts owed to the parent and other related parties are disclosed in note 39.

36 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax arising from temporary differences for the group are summarised as follows:

De-«recognised on

Recognised in disposal of

The group 1 Jan 2019 profit or loss subsidiary 31 Dec 2019

€ € € €
Deferred tax assets arising on:
Plant and equipment 24,348 (4,392) 2,686 22,542
Leases - 8,371 - 8,371
Unabsocrbed capital aliowances 24,367 94,411 (16,631} 102,147
Unabsorbed tax losses 12,759 (12,759) - -
Provisions 262,250 (79,723) - 182,527
Difference on exchange - (5) - (&)
Total 323,724 8,371 (14,045) 315,582
Deferred tax liabilities arising on:
Intangible assets (273,072) - ) (273,072)
Plant and equipment - {65.852) - (65,852)
Total (273,072) (65,852) - (338,924)




Deferred taxes for the comparative period 2018 can be summarised as follows:

Deferred tax assets arising on:
Plant and equipment
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unabsorbed tax losses
Provisions

Total

Deferred tax liahilities arising on:
Intangible assets

Plant and equipment

Total

Recognised in

o

i

Deferred tax arising from temporary differences for the company are summarised as follows:

The company

Deferred tax assets arising on:
Plant and equipment
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Provisions

Total

Deferred taxes for the comparative period 2018 can be summarised as follows:

Deferred tax assets arising on:
Plant and equipment
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Provisions

Total

1 Jan 2018 profit or loss 31 Dec 2018

€ € €

- 24,348 24,348

11,042 13,325 24,367

- 12,759 12,759

273,573 {11,323} 262,250

284,615 39,109 323,724

(261,157) (11,915) (273,072)

{6,042} 6,042 -

{267,199) (5,873} (273,072)
Recoghnised in

1 Jan 2019 profitorloss 31 Dec 2019

€ € €

4,387 (1,831) 2,556

7.031 95,116 102,147

1,866 - 1,866

13,284 93,285 106,569
Recognised in

1 Jan 2018 profit orloss 31 Dec 2018

€ € £

1,247 3,140 4.387

4,547 2,484 7,031

1,866 - 1,866

7,660 5,624 13,284

See note 14 for information on the group’s and company’s tax expense.




37 Cash flow adjustments and changes in working capital

o0

The following non-cash flow adjustments and adjustments for changes in working capital have been made
to profit before tax to arrive at operating cash flow:

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €

Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation 378,878 387,958 7.908 13,271
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 310,844 - - -
Dividends receivable - - (2,579,591) (2,218,290)
Movement in provision for deubtful debts {257.971) 131,650 - -
Bad debts written off 306,496 - - -
Profit on disposal of PPE - (5,608) - -
Unrealised exchange movements (54,664) - - -
Loss on disposal of subsidiary 58,363 - 264,899 -
Impairment of investment in joint venture - - - 282,842
Movement in provision for inventories 84,856 - -
Inventories written off 35,041 19,839 - -
Interest expense on leasing arrangements 81,425 - - -
Interest payable 68,697 51,543 44,193 -
Interest receivable (20,462) {12,776) (65,181) {35,259)

992,504 572,606 (2,327,772) {(1,957,436)
Woerking capital:
Change in inventories (1,799,834) (46,865) - -
Change in confract assets 630,508 - - -
Change in trade and other receivables {10,282) {2,121,933) 542,448 444 218
Change in trade and other payables 613,230 382,202 (74,352) 1,923
Change in contract liabilities 713,753 - - -

147,375 {1,785,896) 468,096 446,141
a8 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the group’s and company’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activites are those for which
cash flows were, ot future cash flows will be, classified in the Statement of Cash Flows as cash from

fpancing activities.

The group

Leases

Bank loans

Amounts owed to parent company
Amounts owed to jointly controlled
entities

Amounts owed to other related parties
Amounts owed to a shareholder

Notes

21
32
35

35
35
35

Balance at 31 Other non- Balance at 31
December cash December
2018 Cash flows changes 2018

€ € € €

- (368,346) 2,374,885 2,006,539

300,000 {100,000) - 200,000
4,214,968 (1,077,272} (1.416,375) 1,721,321
3,673 (3,673) - -
273,720 (273,720) - -
12475 (12,475) - -
4,804,836 (1,835,486} 958,510 3,927,860




The table below details changes in the group’s liabilites arising from financing activides for the preceeding

accounting period:

Balance at 31 Other non- Balance at 31

December cash December

The group Notes 2017 Cash flows changes 2018

€ € € €

Bank loans 32 - 300.000 - 300,000

Amounts owed to parent company 35 3,843,974 (404,111) 775,105 4,214,968
Amounts owed to jointly controfled

entities 35 3,673 - - 3,673

Amounts owed to other related parties 35 226,363 47,357 - 273,720

Amounts owed to associates and JVs 35 208,843 (208,843) - -

Amounts owed to a shareholder 35 6,908 5,567 - 12475

4,289,761 (260,030) 775,105 4,804,836

During 2019, the group adopted IFRS 16 and as a result recognised lease liabilities amounting to € 2,216,830
on 1 January 2019 and an additional € 76,633 during the same year. Cash payments made on leases amounted
to € 368,346 (inclusive of interest). The interest expensc during the year amounted to € 81,425, The interest,
together with the adjustment upon initial recognition of IFRS 16, represent the non-cash movements of

€ 2,374,885 presented above for leases.

Other significant non-cash movements for the group during 2019 comprise a decrease of € 87,099 in
liabilities upon disposal of a subsidiary aad other amounts totaling € 1,329,276 which have been set-off

against receivables from related parties.

The tables below details the company’s liabilities arising from financing activities.

Balance at 31 Other non- Balance at 31

December cash December

The company Notes 2018  Cash flows changes 2019

€ € € €

Amounts owed {o parent company 35 3,812,704 (970,514) (1,120,869) 1,721,321
Amounts owed to jointly controlied

entities 35 3,673 (3,673) - -

Amounts owed to other related parties 35 26,811 (26.811) - -

Amounts owed o associates and JVs 35 90 (90) - -

Amounts owed to a sharehoider 35 5,486 {5,488) - -

3,848,764 {1,006,574) {1,120,869) 1,721,321

The table below details changes in the company’s liabilities arising from financing activities for the preceeding

accounting period:

Balance at 31 Other non- Balance at 31

December cash December

The company Notes 2017  Cash flows changes 2018

€ € € €

Amounts owed to parent company 35 3,547,429 (414,241) 679,516 3,812,704
Amounts owed to jointly controlled

entities 35 3,673 - - 3,673

Amounts owed to other related parties 35 11,563 15,248 - 26,811

Amounts owed to subsidiaries 35 165,985 {155,985) - -

Amounts owed to associates and JVs 35 208,843 {154,744) {54,009} 90

Amounts owed to a sharehoider 35 2,581 2,905 - 5,486

3,930,074 (706,317) 625,507 3,848,764

The significant non-cash movements for the company during 2019 comprise amounts totaling € 1,120,869

which have been set-off against receivables from telated pattics.




39 Related party transactions

T{arvest Technology p.l.c. is the parent company of the subsidiary undertakings highlighted in note 22. The
parent company of Harvest Technology pl.c. is 1923 Investmenss p.l.c. which is incorporated in Malta. The
ultimate parent of the group is Hili Ventuges Limited. The registered office of 1923 Investments p.l.c. and
Hili Ventures Limited, is Nineteen Twenty Three, Valletta Road, Marsa, MRS 3000, Malta. Both entities draw

up consolidated financial statements with 1923 Investments p.lc. incorporating the results of Harvest

Technology p.le. group. All consolidated financial statements may be obtained from the abovementioned

registered address.

During the year under review, the group entered into transactions with related parties as set out below:

The group

Revenue:

Related party transactions with:

Ultimate parent
Parent company
Other related parties

Cost of sales:

Related party transactions with:

Ukiimate parent
Parent company
Other related parties

Administrative expenses:

Related party transactions with:

Ultimate parent
Parent company
Other related parties

Finance income:

Related party transactions with:

Parent company
Ultimate parent

Finance cost:

Related party transactions with:

Parent company
Other related parties

2019 2018
Related Related
party Total party Total
activity activity activity activity
€ € % € £ %
31,764 95,949
125,104 143,962
168,594 274,730
325462 16,048,372 2 514,641 15,568,689 3
- (55,848)
- {143,508}
{25,235) (36,873)
(25,235) (8.963.451) 008  (236,229) (9,887,672) >
(8,114) (20,236)
(636,241) (655,469)
(379,508) (353,305)
(1,023,863} (3,899,083) o8 (1,029,010) (4,731,235) 22
6,493 -
13,969 12,776 12,776
20,462 20,644 99 12,776 12,776 100
(26,412) {14,403}
(10,593) (10,702}
{37,005) {151,122) 24 (25,105) (51,543) 49




£
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2019 2018
Related Related
party Total party Total
The company activity activity activity activity
€ € % € € Yo
Revenue:
Related party transactions with:
Subsidiaries 352,702 443,492
352,702 352,702 100 443,492 443,492 100
Administrative expenses:
Related party transactions with:
Parent company 485,833 530,000
Subsidiaries 31,764 24 864
517,597 1,000,771 52 554,864 1,350,388 41
Finance income:
Related party transactions with:
Parent company 4,275 5714
Subsidiaries 60,906 29,545
65,181 65,181 100 35,259 35,259 100
Finance cost:
Related party transactions with:
Parent company (20,087} -
Subsidiaries (24,106) -
(44,193) {44,193} 100 - - -

Other refated parties consist of related parties other than the parent, entities with joint control or significant
influence over the company, subsidiaries, joint ventures inn which the company 1s a venture and key
management personnel of the company or its parcnt company.

No expense has been recognised in the period for impairments in respect of amounts due by related parties
and there ate no provisions for impairment in respect of outstanding amounts due by related parties.

Key management personnel compensation is disclosed in note 12, Dividend income is disclosed in note 8.
The amounts due to/from other related parties at period-end are disclosed in notes 25, 28, 33 and 35. The
terms and conditions in respect of the related party balances do not specify the nature of the consideration to

be provided in settlement. No guarantees have been given or received.

The amounts owed to the group by related parties as disclosed in note 25 are unsecured and bear interest at
4.5% (2018: 4.5%). The amounts due in note 28 are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

The group and the company’s other financial liabilities disclosed in note 35 are unsccured, and bear interest
at 4.5% (2018: 4.5%).

Contingent Habilities and guarantees are disclosed in note 41,

The directors consider the ultimate controlling party to be Carmelo Hili, who during 2016 became the
indirect owner of more than 50% of the issued share capital of Hili Ventures Limired,




40 Operating leases

The group The group

2019 2018

€ €

Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense for the year - 212,507
- 212,507

At the end of the reporting period, the group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating
[eases, which fall due as follows:

The group The group
2019 2018
€ €

Within one year 227,953
Between two and five years - 930,559
More than five years - 1,294,845

- 2,453,357

In 2018, operating lease payments represented rentals payable by the company for certain buildings and motor
vehicles. Leases of buildings were, and remain, mainly with related parties and leases of vehicles were, and
remain, with third parties.

41 Contingent liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, one of the group’s subsidiaries had issued guarantees amounting to

€ 600,000 (2018: € 600,000 ) in relation to bank facifities granted ro related undertakings. The same subsidiary
also had guarantees amounting to € 225,300 (2018: € 504,700) granted to third parties as collateral for
liabilities.

42 Financial instrument risk
Risk management objectives and policies

The group is exposed to vatious risks in relation to financial instruments. The group’s financial assets and
liabilities by category are summarised in note 42.4. The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The group's risk management is coordinated by the directors and focuses on actively securing the group's
short to medium term cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial risks.

The objectives, policies and processes for managing financial tisks and the methods used to measure such
risks are subject to continual improvement and development. Where applicable, any significant changes in the
group’s exposure to financial risks or the manner in which the group manages and measures these risks are
disclosed below.

Where possible, the group aims to reduce and control risk concentrations. Concentration of financial risk
areas when financial instruments with similar characteristics are influenced in the same way by changes in
economic or other factors. The amount of the risk exposure associated with financial instruments sharing
similar characteristics 1s disclosed in more detail in the notes to the financial statements.

The group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write
options. The most significant financial risks to which the group is exposed are described below.
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42.1 Market risk analysis

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency transactions arise when the group buys or sells goods or services whose price is
denominated in a foreign cutrency, borrows or lends funds when the amounts payable or receivable are
denominated in a foreign currency or acquires or disposes of assets, or incurs or settles liabilities,
denominated in a foreign currency. Foreign currency transactions comptise mainly transactions in USD and

GBP.

The risk arising from foreign currency transactions is managed by regular monitoring of the relevant
exchange rates and management’s reaction to material movements thereto.

Interest rate risk

'T'he group and the company have loans and receivables with a fixed coupon as disclosed in note 25 and 39,
and cash at bank with a floating coupon as disclosed in note 29. The group has taken out interest bearing
facilities as disclosed in notes 32 and 35. The interest rates thereon and the terms of such borrowings are

disclosed accordingly. The group also has loans and reccivables and cash at bank with interest rates as
disclosed in notes 25, 29 and 39.

The company and the group arc exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on horrowings and debt instruments
carrying a floating interest.

Management monitors the movement in interest rates and, where possible, reacts to materiai movements in
such rates by adjusting its selling prices or by restructuring its financing structure.

The carrying amounts of the group’s and company’s financial instruments carrving a rate of interest at the
end of the reporting period are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

42.2 Credit risk analysis

Credit risk is the tisk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the group. The group is exposed
to credit risk from financial assets including cash and cash equivalents held at banks, loans and receivables,
trade and other receivables. The group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount
of financial assets recognised at the reporting date, as summarised below:

Notes The group Thegroup  The company The company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €

Classes of financial assets -

carrying amounfs:

Loans and receivables 25 - 1,064,002 1,389,422 1,201,825
Trade and other receivables 28 4,378,402 5,819,531 38,470 2,358,221
Cash and cash equivalents 29 2,133,336 890,097 238,709 242 704

6,511,738 7,873,630 1,675,601 3,803,750




Credit risk management

The credit sk is managed both at the level of each individual subsidiary as well as on a group basis, based
on the group’s credit risk management policies and procedurces.

Loans and reecivables and certain trade receivables comprise amounts due from refated parties. The group
and company’s concentration to credit risk arising from these receivables are considered limired as there
were no indications that these counterparties arc unable to meet their obligations. Management considers
these to be of good credit quality. Management does not consider loans and receivables to have deteriorated
in credit quality and the effect of management’s esdmate of the 12-month credit loss has been determined
to be insigniticane to the results of the group and the company. By 31 December 2019, the group had
received or sertled all amounts due from related parties.

The group and the company hold money exclusively with institutions havieg high quality external credit
ratings. The cash and cash cquivalents held with such banks at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are callable on
demand. One of the banks with whom cash and cash equivalents are held forms part of an internadonal
group with an A credit rating by Standard and Poor’s and similar high ratings by other ageacies. The group
also holds cash with a local bank having a credit rating of BBB- by Standatd and Poor’s. Cash held by the
group with other local banks for which no credit rating is available are not significant. Management
considers the probability of default from such banks to be close to zero and the amount calculated using the
12-month expected credit loss model to be very insignificant. Therefore, based on the above, no loss
allowance has been recognised by the group and the company.

The group assesses the credit quality of its customers by taking into account their financial standing, past
cxperienice and other factors, such as bank references and the customers” financial position.

Management is responsible for the quality of the group’s credit portfolios and has established credit
processes involving delegated approval authorities and credit procedures, the objective of which is to build
and maintain assets of high quality.

Individual risk limits are set in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored. Each new individual customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the
company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions arc otfered. Purchase limits are established
for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval from
management. Customers that fail to meet the group’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the
group only on a prepayment basis,

The group’s policy is to deal only with credit worthy counterparties. The credit terms is generally between
30 and 90 days., The credit terms for customers as negotated with customers are subject to an internal
approval process as abovementoned. The ongoing credit risk is managed through regular review of ageing
analysis, together with credit limits per customer.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various industries and mainly in Malta,

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at 31 December 2019 was estimated based on a range of forecast
economic scenarios as at that date.

The coronavisus pandemic which started spreading in early 2020 is causing significant disruption to business
and econotnic activity and will have an immediate impact on the economic scenarios used for estimating
ECL. This is because key inputs for this estimation, such as GDP, are weakening and the probability of a
particular adverse economic scenatio for the short term is higher.
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The potential cconomic impact of the coronavirus was not considered in arriving at IXCL at 31 December
2019. The impact of these factors, wogether with regulatory measures and Governments’ initiatives being
taken to assist their respective econtomies, will be considered when estimating ECL under IFRS 9 in 2020.

Security

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment
losses, represents the group’s and the company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, without taking account
of the value of the collateral obrained. Guarantees are disclosed in notes 32 and 41.

In addition, the group does not hold collateral relating to other financial assets (eg derivative assets, cash
and cash equivalents held with banks).

Trade receivables

The group applies the ITRS 9 simplified model of recognising litetime expected credit losses for all trade
receivables as these items do not have a significant financing component.

In measuring the expected credit losses, the erade receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as
they possess shated credit risk characteristics. They have been grouped based on the days past due and also
according to the geographical location of customers.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profile for sales over the past 36 months before 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 respectively as well as the corresponding historical credit losses
duting that period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current and forwarding looking
mactoeconomic factors affecting the customer’s ability to settle the amount outstanding. The group has
identified gross domestic product (GDP) and unemployment rates of the countries in which the customers
arc domiciled to be the most relevant factors and accordingly adjusts historical loss rates for expected
changes in these factors. However given the short period exposed to credit risk, the impact of these
macroeconomic factors has not been considered significant within the reporting period.

"'rade receivables are written off (ie derecognised) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovety.
Failure to make payments within 365 days from the invoice date and failure to engage with the group on
alternative payment arrangement amongst other is considered indicators of no reasonable expectation of
recovery.

On the above basis the expected credit loss for trade recetvables as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 was determined as follows:

More than Morethan More than

31 December 2019 Current 30 days €0 days 90 days Total
Expected credit loss rate (%) 0.59% 1.94% 4.84% 26.94%
Gross carrying amount (€} 1,429,149 1,948,725 369,025 761,453 4,508,353

Lifetime expecfed credit loss 8,407 37,719 17,875 205,157 269,158




More than Morethan More than

31 December 2018 Current 30 days 60 days 90 days Total
Expected credit loss rate (%) 0.64 % 1.75 % 3.93% 38.59 %

Gross carrying amount (€) 2,165,706 648,077 278,291 1,272,237 4,362,311
Lifstime expected credit loss 13,805 11,305 10,947 490,972 527,128

Changes in expected credit loss rates berween reporting periods is attributable to change in citcumstances,
past ageing information and revised history of loss occurrences. The group however experiences very low
levels of actual impairments arising from non-performing trade reccivables and consequently management
considers the lifetime expected credit losses 1o be adequate to the business of the group.

The loss allowance at the end of the previous reporting period that ended 31 December 2018 included an
amount of receivables which were written off during the current year as disclosed below. Consequently, the
expected loss rate for amournts receivable that are due for mote than 90 days decreased as a result.

"T'he closing balance of the of the trade receivables loss allowance as at 31 December reconciles with the
trade receivables loss allowance opening balance as follows:

The group The group

2019 2018

€ €

Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 527,129 395,479
Loss allowance recognised during the year 48,525 131,650
Reversal of ioss allowance on impaired receivables written off (306,496} -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 269,158 527,129

42.3 Liquidity risk

The group and company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises from its obligations to meet its financial linbilitcs,
which comprise bank borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities (see notes 32, 33 and
35). Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash to ensute the availability of an
adequate amount of funding to meet the group’s and company’s obligations when they become due.

Liquidity risk is that the group and the company might be unable to meet its obligations. The group and the
company manage their liquidity needs by monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term
financial liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows duce in day-to-day business. The data used
for analysing these cash flows is consistent with that used in the contractual maturity analysis below.
Liquidity needs arc monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and weck-to-week basis. Long-term
liguidity needs for a 180-day and a 360-day lookout period are identified monthly. Net cash requirements
are compared to available borrowing facilities in order to determine headroom or any shortfalls. This
analysis shows that available borrowing facilities are expected to be sufficient over the lookout period.

The group and company’s objective is o maintain cash to meet their liquidity requirements for 30-day
periods at a minimum. This objective was met for the reporting period. Iunding for lopg-term liquidity
needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilides and the ability o sell
long-term financial assets.
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The following maturity analysis for financial liabilitics shows the remaining contractual maturitics using the
contractual undiscounted cash flows on the basis of the earliest date on which the group and the company

can be required to pay. The analysis includes both interest and principal cash flows:

The group

31 December 2019

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing

Fixed rate instruments
Variable-rate instruments

On demand
or within 1
year

2,570,863
1,100,000
303,998

More than
5 years

Total

2,670,863
1,921,321
303,998

3,974,861

4,796,182

This compares to the maturity of the group’s non-derivative financial liabilities in the previous reporting

petiods as follows:

31 December 2018

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing

Fixed rate instruments
Variable-rate instruments

The company

31 December 2019

Non-derivative financial liahilities
Non-interest bearing
Fixed rate instruments

31 December 2018

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing
Fixed rate instruments

On demand
or within 1 More than
year 5 years Total
2,112,653 - 2,112,653
2,571,862 - 4,804,836
734,679 - 734,679
5419194 - 7,652,168
On demand
or within 1 More than
year 5 years Total
57,5624 - 57,524
1,000,000 - 1,721,321
1,057,524 - 1,778,845
On demand
or within 1 More than
year 5 years Total
119,144 - 119,144
1,715,789 2,132975 3,848,764
1,834,933 2,132,975 3,967,908
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42.4 Summary of financial assets and financial liahbilities by category

The carrying amounts of the group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as recognised at the end of the
reporting period may also be categorised as foliows. Sec note 4.22 for explanations about how the category
of financial instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

The group The group The company The company
2019 2018 2018 2018
£ £ € €
Non-current assets
Loans and receivables - 1.064,002 450,000 1,201,825
Current assets
Loans and receivables - - 949,422 -
Trade and other recsivables 4,378,402 5,819,531 39,470 2,359,221
Cash and cash equivalents 2,133,336 990,097 236,709 242,704
6,511,738 6,809,628 1,225,601 2,601,925
Non~current liabilities
Bank borrowings 100,000 100,000 - -
Other financial liabllities 721,321 2,132,974 721,321 2,132,975
821,321 2,232,974 721,321 2,132,975
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost:
Bank borrowings 403,998 934,679 - -
Trade and other payables 2,570,863 2,112,653 57,524 119,144
Other financial liabilities 1,000,000 2,371,862 1,000,000 1,715,789
3,974,861 5,419,194 1,057,524 1,834,933

42.5 Financial instruments measured at fair value

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair valuc in the statement of financial position are
grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

* Level 1t quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that arc observable for the asset or liability,
cither directly or indirectly

* Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asser or Hability.

At 31 Decemnber 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liahilities classified
with eurrent assets and cuerent liabilitics respectively approximated their fair values due to the short-term
maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The fait values of non-current financial liabilities and the non-current loans and receivables are not materially
different from their carrying amounts duc to the fact that the interest rates arc considered to represent markct
ratcs at the year-end or because they are repayable on demand. The fair values of the financial asscts and
financial liabilities included in the level 2 category above have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the
discount rate that reflects the credir risk of counterparties.

Trair vatue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
company determines when transfers are deemed to have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy at the end

of each reporting period.

The following table provides an analysis of financial inseruments that are not measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair
value, and other than investments in subsidiarics, associates and joint ventures, grouped into Levels T to 3.

The group

31 December 2019

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Receivables from related parties

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Related party loans
Bank overdraft and loans

31 December 2018

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Receivables from related parties

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Related party loans
Bank overdraft

The company

31 December 2019

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Receivables from related parties

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Related party loans

Carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total amount
€ € € € €

- 1,721,321 - 1,721,321 1,721,321

- 503,998 - 503,998 503,988

- 2,225,319 - 2225318 2,225,319
Carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total amount
€ € € € €

- 1,064,002 - 1,064,002 1,064,002

- 1,064,002 - 1,064,002 1,064,002

- 4504836 - 4,504,836 4,504,836

- 1,034,679 - 1,034,679 1,034,679

- 5,539,515 - 5,539,515 5,539,515
Carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total amount
€ € € € €

- 1,389,422 - 1,399,422 1,399,422

- 1,399,422 - 1,399,422 1,399,422

- 1,721,321 - 1,721,321 1,721,321

- 1,721,321 - 1,721,321 1,721,321
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Carrying

31 December 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tetal amount
€ € € € €

Financial assets

Loans and receivables

Receivables from related parties - 1,201,825 - 1,201,825 1,201,825
- 1,201,825 - 1,201,825 1,201,825

Financial fiabilities at amortised cost

Related party loans - 3,848,764 - 3,848,764 3,848,764
- 3,848,764 - 3,848,764 3,848,764

43 Capital risk management

The group’s and the company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continuc as a
going concern and to maximise the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the group and the company consists of debr, which includes the bank borrowings
and other financial liabilites disclosed in notes 32 and 35, cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 29
and of items presented within equity in the statement of financial position,

The group’s directors manage the capital structure and make adjustments to it, in light of changes in
cconomic conditions. The capital structure s reviewed on an ongoing basis. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the group balances its overall capital structure through the payments of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issuc of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

44 Post reporting date events

Listing of the company’s shares on the Maita Stock Exchange

A toral of 22,780,636 ordinary shares in Harvest Technology p.l.c., representing the total issucd share capiral,
were admitted to the Official List of the Malta Stock Fxchange on 6 January 2020 and trading started from
7 January 2020.

Upon listing of the total issued share capital of 1larvest Technology p.l.c. on the Official List of the Malta
Stock Exchange, the shateholding of Harvest Technology p.l.c. was divided in the following manner:

- 1923 Investments p.l.c.: 14,340,506 ordinary shares 63% of the total issued share capital
- Prof Juaniro Camilleri: 1,593,397 ordinary shares 7% of the total issued share capital
- Shares held by the public: 6,846,733 ordinary shares 30% of the total issued share capital

Effects of the Covid-19 pandemic

Covid-19 is considered as a significant non-adjusting event that occurred between the end of the reporting
period and the date of authorisation of these financial statements by the board.

This is having rippling, negative impacts on the global economy. flarvest Technology p.l.c. is actively
monitoring the current and potential effects that the Covid-19 outbreak may have on its business areas.
Certain sectors, such as e-commerce, coupled with business continuity initiatives, are likely to impacted less
in the immediate term and therefore generating income,
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Nevertheless, certain aspects of the business may suffer if the current situation is prolonged. Apco Systems
Limited indicated that there could be a decrease in tragsactions due to a decline in customer spending.
Gaming providers represent a significant part of that company’s client base and would have 1 negative
impact if there is a general decline in arcas such as sport betting. PTL Limited has signalled debt collection
and reduced sales as the company’s main challenges. APCO Limited signalled difficult new business
prospects both locally as well as abroad.

Whilst in the short term, revenue can be well comparable with the revenue generated in the last few months,
one naturally expects the effects of a possible global siowdown in business to have a negative effect on all
industries resulting in missed sales and business opportunities, ‘This is due to a shift in the customers’
approach on priorities.

This said, all subsidiatics arc secking to mitigate any downturns with new opportunitics that may be creared
by the new reality.

Anothet sitvation which Harvest Technology p.l.e. could face is the challenge in keeping our workforce safe
whilst ensuring that possible business distuptions are kept at a minimum.

Cash flow is essential in this respect and different methods to keep such flow healthy will be devised in the
medium-to-long term as necessary.

Harvest Technology p.l.c. notes that with the current cashflow headroom, the group is not currently
foresceing any defaults with respeet to salary payments, creditors, and banking commirments for the
immediate future.

The directors are of the opinion that it is premature to comment on the consequences of the events that are
still unfolding and that they cannot make an estimate of the financial effect that these events may have on
the group. These events may adversely affect the group’s current and future performance and future financial
positon. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that may be required should the group not
realise the full value of its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business as a result of the
prevailing situation.

There were no other adjusting or significant non-adjusting events between the end of the reporting period
and the date of authorisation by the board.

45 Immediate parent company, ultimate parent company and controlling party
The immediate parent company of Harvest Technology pl.c. is 1923 Investments p.l.c..
The registered office of 1923 Investments p.l.c. is Nineteen T'wenty Three, Valletta Road, Marsa, MRS 3000,

Malta. The ultimate parent of Harvest Technology p.l.c. is Hili Ventures Limited with the same registcred
address.

The directors consider the ultimate controlling pacty to be Mr Carmelo (sive Melo) 1ili, who is the owner of
more than 50% of the Hili Ventures Limited group.,
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Harvest Technology p.l.c.

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Harvest Technology p.lc. (the “Company”} and of
the Group of which it is the parent, set out on pages 28 to 93, which comprise the statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the statements of profit or loss and other
comptehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the

year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of their financial
petformance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Repotting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU), and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, Cap. 386 {the “Act”).

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the audit committee,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company and the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standaeds Board for
Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders)
Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act, Cap. 281 that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. In conducting our audit we have
remained independent of the Company and the Group and have not provided any of the non-
audit services prohibited by article 18A of the Accountancy Profession Act, Cap. 281 The non-
audit services that we have provided to the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019 are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.




85

Grant Thornton

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) that we
identified. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment testing of goodwill in the consolidated financial statements

Key audit matter

Goodwill with a carrying amount of €7.49 million as at 31 December 2019 is included in the
Group’s Statement of Financial Position as at that date.

Management is required to perform an assessment at least annually to establish whether
goodwill should continue to be recognised, or if any impairment is required. The assessment
was performed at the lowest level at which the Group could allocate and assess goodwill, which
is referred to as a cash peneratdng unit (CGU’).

The impairment assessment was based on the calculation of a value-in-use for each of the
CGUs. This calculation was based on estimated future cash flows for each CGU, including
assumptions concerning revenue growth, profit margins, weighted average cost of capital and
effective tax rates.

Estimating future profitability requires the directors to apply significant judgements which
include estimating future taxable profits, long term growth and discount rates. The estimation
of future cash flows and the level to which they are discounted is inherently uncertain and
requires judgement.

We focussed on this area because of the sipnificance of the amount of goodwill which is
recognised at balance sheet date. Moreover, the directors’ assessment process is complex and
highly judgmental and is based on assumptions which are affected by expected future market
or econommic conditions.

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

We evaluated the suitability and appropriateness of the impairment methodology applied by
management and engaged our internal valuation specialist resources to assess the reliability of
the directors’ forecasts and to challenge the methodology used and the underlying assumptions.
We concluded that the parameters utilised were reasonable.
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We communicated with management and those charged with governance and noted that they
wete able to provide satisfactory responses to our questions. We also assessed the adequacy of
the disclosures made in note 4.28 of the financial statements relating to goodwill including those
regarding the key assumptions used in assessing its carrying amount. Those disclosures
specifically explain that the directors have assessed the cartying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2019 to be recoverable and that there is no impairment in the value of the goodwill.

Assessment of carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s financial
statements

Key audit matter

Duting the year ended 31 December 2019 management carried out an assessment to establish
whether the cattying amount of investments in subsidiaries in the financial statements of the
Commpany at 31 December 2019 should continue to be recognised, or if any impairment is
required.

We focussed on this atea because of the significance of the investments in subsidiaries and
other investments which, at 31 December 2019, amounted € 11.12 million. Moteover, the
directors' assessment process is complex and highly judgmental and is based on assumptions,
such as forecast growth rates, profit margins, weighted average cost of capital and effective tax
rate, which ate affected by expected future market or economic conditions.

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

We evaluated the suitability and appropriateness of the impairment methodology applied by
management and engaged our internal valuation specialist resources to assess the reliability of
the directors’ fotecasts and to challenge the methodology used and the underlying assumptions.
We concluded that the parameters utilised were reasonable.

We communicated with management and those charged with governance and noted that they
wete able to provide satisfactory responses to our questions. We also assessed the adequacy of
the disclosures made in note 4.28 of the financial statements relating to investments including
those regarding the key assumptions used in assessing its carrying amount. Those disclosures
specifically explain that the directors have assessed the carrying amount of investments as at 31
Decembet 2019 to be recoverable and that there is no impairment in the value of the
investments,

Other information

The directors ate responsible for the other information. The other information comprises (i)
the Directors” report, (i) the Chairman’s message and (1ii) the Chief Executive Officer’s review
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and out auditor’s repoxt thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, inchading the
Ditectors’ repott.

In connection with our audit of the financial statetnents, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
matetially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appeats to be materially misstated.
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With respect to the Directors’ report, we also considered whether the Directors’ report includes
the disclosures required by Article 177 of the Act.

Based on the work we have performed, in our opinion:

¢ The nformation given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statermnents are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and

¢ the Directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Act.

In addidon, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and the Group and
their environment obtained in the course of the andit, we are required to report if we have
identified matetial misstatements in the Directors’ report and other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors those charged with dovernance for the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and are propetly prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ettor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, ot have no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s and the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ertot, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
matetial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from fraud or etror and are
considered materdal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of usets taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the #isks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropdate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The sk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circomstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and Group’s internal control.

- Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s and
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However future events or conditions may cause the Company or the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evalvate the overall presentadon, stucture and content of the financial staternents,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undeslying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express and opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and petformance of
the Group audit, We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matrers, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
the relevant ethical requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matrer should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefir of such communication.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate
Governance

The Listing Rules issued by the Malta Listing Authority (the “Listing Rules”) require the
directors to prepate and include in their Annual Repott a Statement of Compliance providing
an explanation of the extent to which they have adopted the Code of Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and the effective measures that they have rtaken to ensure compliance
throughout the accounting petiod with those Principles.

The Listing Rules also require us, as the auditor of the Company, to include a report on the
Statement of Compliance prepared by the directors.

We read the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Principles of Good Corporate
Governance and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements included in the Annual
Report. Our responsibilities do not extend to considering whether this statement is consistent
with any other information included in the Annual Report.

We are not requited to, and we do not, consider whether the Board’s statements on internal
control included in the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Principles of (Good
Corporate Governance cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

In our opinion, the Cotporate governance statement set out on pages 13 to 27 has been properly
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

We also have responsibilities

¢ under the Companies Act, Cap 386 to teport to you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us
- the financial statements ate not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
- certain disclosurs of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made in the
financial statements, giving the required particulars in our repott.

® in terms of Listing Rules to review the statement made by the Directors that the business
is 2 going concern together with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.

We have nothing to repott to you in respect of these responsibilities.
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Auditor tenure

We were first appointed as auditors of the Company and the Group on 30 September 2016.
Our appointment has been renewed annually by a sharcholders’ resolution reptesenting a total
period of uninterrupted engagement appointment of four years.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mark
Bugeja.

Mark Bugeja (Partner) for and on behalf of
GRANT THORNTON

Fort Business Centre

Triq L-Intornjatur, Zone 1
Central Business District
Birkirkara CBD 1050
Malta

24 April 2020
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